
AGENDA PACKET 
03/13/19 REGULAR MEETING 



 PAGE 1 OF 2 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
 THE REGIONAL GOVERNMENT OF CAPE COD 

Board of Regional Commissioners

COMMISSIONERS 
RONALD R. BEATY, Barnstable 
RONALD BERGSTROM, Chatham 
MARY PAT FLYNN, Falmouth 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Moment of Silence

4. Public Comment

5. Approval of Minutes

a. Regular Meeting of March 6, 2019

b. Executive Session of March 6, 2019

6. General Business

a. Discussion on adopting the County’s website as the official method of
posting notices for meetings of the Board of Regional Commissioners
pursuant to Title 940 of the Code of Massachusetts Regulations, section
29.03(2)(b)

Note: For all items under General Business, the Board may take official action including 
votes 

7. New Business – Other business not reasonably anticipated by the Chair

3/11/19 @ 9:45 A.M. 

March 13, 2019 

10:00 A.M. 

East Wing Conference Room 
Old Jail Building 
3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630 

DATE: 

TIME: 

PLACE: 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA



Reasonable accommodations for people with disabilities are available upon request. Please contact Justyna Marczak, Barnstable 
County ADA Coordinator at jmarczak@barnstablecounty.org or call 508-375-6646 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting The 
County Commissioners’ meeting may be viewed in real time at https://www.youtube.com/user/BarnstableCounty, 
https://www.barnstablecounty.org/ 
 
3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630  p. (508) 375-6648     f. (508) 375-4136

 MARCH 13, 2019  REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 10:00 A.M.        PAGE 2 OF 2 

  
    

      

8. Commissioners’ Actions

a. Authorizing the approval of a reimbursement request from Jack Yunits,
County Administrator, for the period of January 7, 2019 through March
5, 2019

b. Authorizing the appointment of Joshua Mason to the Barnstable County
HOME Consortium, as the representative for the Town of Dennis, replacing
James Kyrimes, for an unexpired term through January 31, 2020, as
recommended by the Dennis Board of Selectmen

c. Authorizing a cooperative agreement with the Town of Dennis to do and
perform all dredge related work at Approach Channel for an amount not
to exceed $11,250.00

d. Authorizing a cooperative agreement with the Town of Yarmouth to do and
perform all dredge related work at Approach Channel for an amount not
to exceed $11,250.00

e. Authorizing a cooperative agreement with the Town of Truro to do and
perform all dredge related work in Pamet Harbor Basin for an amount not
to exceed $90,000.00

f. Authorizing the execution of a Subaward Agreement with the Center for
Coastal Studies in the amount of $288,200.00 through June 30, 2021 for
the Seafloor Mapping Program

g. Authorizing the execution of amendments to mortgages and security
agreements with 704 Falmouth Housing Corporation, LLC on property
located at 587 Gifford Street in the town of Falmouth

h. Authorizing the execution of Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments

9. Commissioners’ Reports

10. County Administrator and Staff Reports

11. Adjournment

https://www.youtube.com/user/BarnstableCounty
https://www.barnstablecounty.org/


20190306 

AGENDA ITEM 5a 
Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting of March 6, 2019 



 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

 
 
 
BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS   PAGE 1 OF 6  

   

 
Barnstable, ss. 
 
At a regular meeting of the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners, held in the 
Superior Courthouse in Barnstable, on the sixth day of March, A.D. 2019 
 
 
Board Regional Commissioners: 
 
Ronald R. Beaty   Present 
 
Ronald Bergstrom  Present 
 
Mary Pat Flynn   Present  
 
 
Staff Present: 
 
Jack Yunits   County Administrator 
 
Steve Tebo Interim Assistant County Administrator/Director, Facilities 

Department 
 
Justyna Marczak Human Resources Director 
 
Phil Burt Director, Fire Rescue Training Academy 
 
Owen Fletcher   Executive Assistant, Administration 
 
Andrew Platt AmeriCorps Cape Cod Program Coordinator, Resource 

Development Office 
 
Ian Roberts   Technical Support Specialist, Information Technology 
 
 
1. Call to Order  

 
Chairman Bergstrom called the meeting to order at 10:00 A.M. 
 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
 

3. Moment of Silence  
 
 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                    REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                               MARCH 6, 2019      
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 2 OF 6 
 

4. Public Comment    
 
Mr. Wayne Bergeron of Dennis and Abraham Kasparian of Yarmouthport individually 
expressed their disapproval of a recent tweet by Commissioner Beaty which read “Generally 
speaking, are gay politicians too self-absorbed and self-centered to adequately represent ALL 
of their constituents in a fair and equitable manner?”. Both individuals noted that these 
comments distracted the Board from focusing on more pressing issues.  

 
 
5. Approval of Minutes 
 

a. Regular Meeting of February 27, 2019 
 

Motion by Commissioner Beaty to approve the regular meeting minutes of 
February 27, 2019 as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 

  
 

6. General Business  
 

a. Update on the AmeriCorps Cape Cod Program 
 
Mr. Platt gave a PowerPoint presentation to the Board on the current state of the 
program. The Board expressed their support for the program and engaged in a 
discussion regarding the specific work requested from and done by program 
participants. 
 
 

b. Discussion regarding requests for proposals regarding County legal services 
 
There was a lengthy discussion regarding the County’s legal services. 
Commissioner Beaty expressed his support for the current state of services 
provided, as well as Commissioner Flynn. However, the Board expressed that it 
wished a review of current legal services to assess the need to issue a request for 
proposals for services. Chairman Bergstrom stressed the need to assess what the 
County required. Robert Troy, the current County Counsel, addressed the Board. 
He noted that he had served in that capacity for three decades and the County was 
well served by a combination of his services and contracting for special counsel 
when required. The Board asked staff to perform an assessment of the County’s 
needs. 

 
7. New Business – Other business not reasonably anticipated by the Chair 
 
 
8. Commissioners’ Actions 
 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                    REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                               MARCH 6, 2019      
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 3 OF 6 
 

a. Authorizing the filling of twenty-four (24) vacant AmeriCorps Cape Cod 
Member positions for Program Year 21, from September 3, 2019 through July 
23, 2020 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the filling of twenty-four (24) vacant 
AmeriCorps Cape Cod Member positions for Program Year 21, from September 3, 
2019 through July 23, 2020, as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 
3-0-0 
 

b. Authorizing the creation of the position of Director of the Cape Cod Municipal 
Police Academy and appointment Peter Carnes to that position, effective 
March 11, 2019, as recommended by the County Administrator 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the creation of the position of Director 
of the Cape Cod Municipal Police Academy and appointment Peter Carnes to that 
position, effective March 11, 2019, as recommended by the County Administrator, 
as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 

 
c. Authorization to create the position of Deputy Director of the Cape Cod 

Municipal Police Academy and appoint Wayne Sampson to that position, 
effective March 11, 2019, as recommended by the County Administrator 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the creation of the position of Deputy 
Director of the Cape Cod Municipal Police Academy and appoint Wayne Sampson 
to that position, effective March 11, 2019, as recommended by the County 
Administrator, as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 
 
Mr. Tebo, Mr. Carnes, and Mr. Sampson address the Board on the current state of 
plans for the Academy. Ms. Marczak clarified the nature of the positions and the 
actions required of the Board. 

 
d. Authorizing the promotion of Phil Burt to the full-time position of Director of 

the County Fire and Rescue Training Academy, from the position of BCFRTA 
Interim Director effective March 6, 2019, as recommended by the County 
Administrator 

 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the promotion of Phil Burt to the full-
time position of Director of the County Fire and Rescue Training Academy, from 
the position of BCFRTA Interim Director effective March 6, 2019, as recommended 
by the County Administrator, as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 
3-0-0 
 
Mr. Tebo and Mr. Burt addressed the Board regarding the needs of the Academy, 
and the benefits of having a full-time coordinator. 
 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                    REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                               MARCH 6, 2019      
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 4 OF 6 
 

e. Authorizing the approval of unpaid leave for Stacy Gallagher, Director of 
Children’s Cove, for the period of February 20, 2019 through February 27, 
2019 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the approval of unpaid leave for Stacy 
Gallagher, Director of Children’s Cove, for the period of February 20, 2019 
through February 27, 2019, as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 
3-0-0 
 

f. Authorizing the execution of a Memorandum of Understanding with Cape 
Cod Healthcare, Inc., through the Barnstable County Regional Emergency 
Planning Committee, regarding a Regional Sheltering Plan 

 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the execution of a Memorandum of 
Understanding with Cape Cod Healthcare, Inc., through the Barnstable County 
Regional Emergency Planning Committee, regarding a Regional Sheltering Plan, 
as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 
 

g. Authorizing the execution of Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments 
 

There were no certificates to execute at this meeting. 
 
 

9. Commissioners’ Reports 
 

There were no Commissioner reports. 
 
 
10. County Administrator and Staff Reports 

 
Mr. Yunits spoke to the Commissioners regarding the need to publish a notice for a meeting 
with the Cape Cod State Legislative Delegation later in the week. 

 
11. Executive Session 

 
a. Executive Session to review Board of Regional Commissioner Executive 

Session minutes, pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 30A, 
Section 21(a)(7) and Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 30A, Sections 22(f) 
and 22(g) 

Motion by Commissioner Bergstrom to enter Executive Session to review Board of 
Regional Commissioner Executive Session minutes, pursuant to Massachusetts 
General Laws Chapter 30A, Section 21(a)(7) and Massachusetts General Laws 
Chapter 30A, Sections 22(f) and 22(g), and as Chair declare that an open meeting 
may have a detrimental effect on the litigating and negotiating position of the Board 
respectively 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                    REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                               MARCH 6, 2019      
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 5 OF 6 
 

Roll Call: 
 
Beaty: Aye 
Bergstrom: Aye 
Flynn: Aye 

 
The Chair announced that the Board would reconvene in Open Session to adjourn 
but would take no official action. 
 

12. Adjournment 
 

Barnstable, ss. at 11:21 A.M. on this sixth day of March A.D. 2019, Commissioner Beaty 
made a motion to adjourn, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0  

 
List of Documents: 
 

• Draft minutes of the Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting of February 27, 2019 
• Barnstable County AmeriCorps Cape Cod Year 20 (2018-2019) Mid-Year Update 

PowerPoint Presentation 
• Memorandum dated March 5, 2019 to the County Commissioners from Justyna Marczak, 

Human Resources Director, regarding AmeriCorps Cape Cod Year 21 Member Positions 
• Memorandum dated March 6, 2019 to the County Commissioners from Stephen Tebo, 

Assistant County Administrator, regarding the Positions of Director and Deputy Director 
of Police Academy 

• Memorandum dated March 6, 2019 to the County Commissioners from Stephen Tebo, 
Assistant County Administrator, regarding the Positions of Director and Deputy Director 
of Police Academy 

• Memorandum dated March 6, 2019 to the County Commissioners from Stephen Tebo, 
Assistant County Administrator, regarding the Position of the Director of Fire Training 
Academy 

• Memo dated February 28, 2019 to the Barnstable County Commissioners from Stacy 
Gallagher regarding Unpaid Time Off 

• Memorandum of Understanding between Barnstable County Regional Emergency 
Planning Committee and Cape Cod Healthcare Inc. to establish a working relationship in 
preparing for and responding to disasters and storm events 

 
 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                    REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                               MARCH 6, 2019      
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 6 OF 6 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Janice O’Connell, Regional Clerk 

The foregoing records have been read and approved, March     , 2018.  

A true copy, attest: 

Approved, Board of Regional Commissioners: 
 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair Ronald Bergstrom, Chair Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner 

Date 



20190306 

AGENDA ITEM 5b 
Approval of Minutes: Executive Session of March 6, 2019 



 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

 
 
 
BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS   PAGE 1 OF 3  

   

 
Barnstable, ss. 
 
At an Executive Session during a regular meeting of the Barnstable County Board of Regional 
Commissioners, held in the Superior Courthouse in Barnstable, on the sixth day of March, A.D. 
2019 
 
 
Board Regional Commissioners: 
 
Ronald R. Beaty   Present 
 
Ronald Bergstrom  Present 
 
Mary Pat Flynn   Present  
 
 
Staff Present: 
 
Jack Yunits   County Administrator 
 
Steve Tebo Interim Assistant County Administrator/Director, Facilities 

Department 
 
Owen Fletcher   Executive Assistant, Administration 
 
The Board entered Executive Session at 11:12 A.M. 
 
The Board discussed whether it was appropriate to release the minutes in question to the public. 
Mr. Yunits assured the Board that he reviewed the minutes, and there was nothing in them that 
was not already public or needed to be kept confidential. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to release the minutes of Executive Sessions held during the Board 
of Commissioners’ Regular Meetings of: December 5, 2018; June 28, 2017; December 30, 2016; 
November 16, 2016; August 25, 2016; July 20, 2016; June 29, 2016; March 2, 2016 and; February 
3, 2016 to the public, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to return to Open Session, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 
3-0-0 
 
Roll Call: 

 
Beaty: Aye 
Bergstrom: Aye 
Flynn: Aye 
 
 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                    REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                               MARCH 6, 2019      
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 2 OF 3 
 

List of Documents: 
 

• Minutes of the Executive Session of the Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting of 
December 5, 2018 

• Minutes of the Executive Session of the Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting of June 
28, 2017 

• Minutes of the Executive Session of the Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting of 
December 30, 2016 

• Minutes of the Executive Session of the Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting of 
November 16, 2016  

• Minutes of the Executive Session of the Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting of 
August 25, 2016 

• Minutes of the Executive Session of the Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting of July 
20, 2016  

• Minutes of the Executive Session of the Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting of June 
29, 2016  

• Minutes of the Executive Session of the Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting of 
March 2, 2016  

• Minutes of the Executive Session of the Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting of 
February 3, 2016 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                    REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                               MARCH 6, 2019      
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 3 OF 3 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Janice O’Connell, Regional Clerk 

The foregoing records have been read and approved, March     , 2018.  

A true copy, attest: 

Approved, Board of Regional Commissioners: 
 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair Ronald Bergstrom, Chair Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner 

Date 



20190306 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6a 
 

Discussion on adopting the County’s website as the official method of posting 
notices for meetings of the Board of Regional Commissioners pursuant to Title 
940 of the Code of Massachusetts Regulations, section 29.03(2)(b) 

  



BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
OFFICE OF COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUPERIOR COURTHOUSE 
3195 MAIN STREET 

P.O. BOX 427 

BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 

Jack T. Yunits, Jr. 

County Administrator 

Cell: (508) 510-1127 

Office: (508) 375-6771 
Fax: (508) 362-4136 

jack.yunits@barnstablecounty.org 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

March 12, 2019

County Commissioners 

Jack Yunits, County Administrator 

Adopting the County’s website as the Official Method of Posting 

Please authorize the adoption of the County website as the official method of posting notices for meetings 

of County Public Bodies pursuant to Title 940 of the Code of Massachusetts Regulations, section 

29.03(2)(b). 

Approved: 

Ronald Bergstrom, Chair 

Date 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

940 CMR 29.00: OPEN MEETINGS 

Section 

29.01: Purpose, Scope and Other General Provisions 
29.02: Definitions 
29.03:  Notice Posting Requirements 
29.04: Certification 
29.05:  Complaints 
29.06: Investigation 
29.07: Resolution 
29.08: Advisory Opinions 
29.09: Other Enforcement Actions 
29.10: Remote Participation 
29.11: Meeting Minutes 

29.01: Purpose, Scope and Other General Provisions 

(1) Purpose. The purpose of 940 CMR 29.00 is to interpret, enforce and effectuate the purposes
of the Open Meeting Law, M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25.

(2) Severability. If any provision of 940 CMR 29.00 or the application of such provision to any
person, public body, or circumstances shall be held invalid, the validity of the remainder of 940 CMR 
29.00 and the applicability of such provision to other persons, public bodies, or circumstances shall not 
be affected thereby.

(3) Mailing. All complaints, notices (except meeting notices) and other materials that must be sent 
to another party shall be sent by one of the following means: first class mail, email, hand delivery, or 
by any other means at least as expeditious as first class mail.

29.02: Definitions 

As used in 940 CMR 29.00, the following terms shall, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, 
have the following meanings: 

County Public Body. A public body created by county government with jurisdiction that comprises 
a single county. 

District Public Body. A public body with jurisdiction that extends to two or more municipalities. 

Emergency. A sudden, generally unexpected occurrence or set of circumstances demanding immediate 
action. 

Intentional Violation. An act or omission by a public body or a member thereof, in knowing violation 
of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25. Evidence of an intentional violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 
through 25 shall include, but not be limited to, the public body or public body member that: 

(a) acted with specific intent to violate the law;
(b) acted with deliberate ignorance of the law's requirements; or
(c) was previously informed by receipt of a decision from a court of competent jurisdiction or 
advised by the Attorney General, pursuant to 940 CMR 29.07 or 940 CMR 29.08, that the
conduct violates M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25.  Where a public body or public body member 
has made a good faith attempt at compliance with the law, but was reasonably mistaken about its 
requirements, such conduct will not be considered an intentional violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 
18 through 25.

Person. All individuals and entities, including governmental officials and employees.  Person does not 
include public bodies. 

Post Notice.  To place a written announcement of a meeting on a bulletin board, electronic display, 
website, or in a loose-leaf binder in a manner conspicuously visible to the public, including persons with 
disabilities, at all hours, in accordance with 940 CMR 29.03. 

(MA REG. # 1349, Dated 10-6-17) 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.02: continued 

Public Body. Has the identical meaning as set forth in M.G.L. c. 30A, § 18, that is, a multiple-member 
board, commission, committee or subcommittee within the executive or legislative branch or within any 
county, district, city, region or town, however created, elected, appointed or otherwise constituted, 
established to serve a public purpose; provided, however, that the governing board of a local housing, 
redevelopment or other similar authority shall be deemed a local public body; provided, further, that 
the governing board or body of any other authority established by the general court to serve a public 
purpose in the commonwealth or any part thereof shall be deemed a state public body; provided, 
further, that Public Body shall not include the general court or the committees or recess commissions 
thereof, bodies of the judicial branch or bodies appointed by a constitutional officer solely for the 
purpose of advising a constitutional officer and shall not include the board of bank incorporation or the 
policyholders protective board; and provided further, that a subcommittee shall include any 
multiple-member body created to advise or make recommendations to a public body. 

Qualification for Office. The election or appointment of a person to a public body and the taking of 
the oath of office, where required, and shall include qualification for a second or any subsequent term 
of office.  Where no term of office for a member of a public body is specified, the member shall be 
deemed to be qualified for office on a biennial basis following appointment or election to office. 

Regional Public Body. A public body with jurisdiction that extends to two or more municipalities. 

Remote Participation.  Participation by a member of a public body during a meeting of that public body 
where the member is not physically present at the meeting location. 

29.03:  Notice Posting Requirements 

(1) Requirements Applicable to All Public Bodies.
(a) Except in an emergency, public bodies shall file meeting notices sufficiently in advance of a 
public meeting to permit posting of the notice at least 48 hours in advance of the public meeting, 
excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, in accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 20.  In an 
emergency, the notice shall be posted as soon as reasonably possible prior to such meeting.
(b) Meeting notices shall be printed or displayed in a legible, easily understandable format and 
shall contain the date, time and place of such meeting, and a listing of topics that the chair
reasonably anticipates will be discussed at the meeting.  The list of topics shall have sufficient 
specificity to reasonably advise the public of the issues to be discussed at the meeting.
(c) Notices posted under an alternative posting method authorized by 940 CMR 29.03(2) through 
(5) shall include the same content as required by940 CMR 29.03(1)(b).  If such an alternative 
posting method is adopted, the municipal clerk, in the case of a municipality, or the body, in all 
other cases, shall file with the Attorney General written notice of adoption of the alternative method, 
including the website address where applicable, and any change thereto, and the most current 
notice posting method on file with the Attorney General shall be consistently used.
(d) The date and time that a meeting notice is posted shall be conspicuously recorded thereon or 
therewith.  If an amendment occurs within 48 hours of a meeting, not including Saturdays, Sundays, 
and legal holidays, then the date and time that the meeting notice is amended shall also be
conspicuously recorded thereon or therewith.

(2) Requirements Specific to Local Public Bodies.
(a) The official method of posting notice shall be by filing with the municipal clerk, or other person 
designated by agreement with the municipal clerk, who shall post notice of the meeting in a manner 
conspicuously visible to the public at all hours in, on, or near the municipal building in which the 
clerk's office is located.
(b) Alternatively, the municipality may adopt the municipal website as the official method of notice 
posting.

owen.fletcher
Highlight

owen.fletcher
Highlight



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

    

 

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.03: continued 

1. The Chief Executive Officer of the municipality, as defined in M.G.L. c. 4, § 7, must
authorize or, by a simple majority, vote to adopt the municipal website as the official method 
of posting notice.  Any municipality that has adopted its website as the official method of
posting notice by another method as of October 6, 2017 will have satisfied the adoption
requirement.
2. If adopted, a description of the website as the notice posting method, including directions 
on how to locate notices on the website, shall be posted in a manner conspicuously visible to 
the public at all hours on or adjacent to the main and handicapped accessible entrances to the 
municipal building in which the clerk’s office is located.
3. Once adopted as the official method of notice posting, the website shall host the official 
legal notice for meetings of all public bodies within the municipality.
4. Notices must continue to be filed with the municipal clerk, or any other person designated 
by agreement with the municipal clerk.

(c) A municipality may have only one official notice posting method for the purpose of M.G.L. 
c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, either 940 CMR 29.03(2)(a) or (b).  However, nothing precludes a
municipality from choosing to post additional notices via other methods, including a newspaper. 
Such additional notice will not be the official notice for the purposes of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18
through 25.
(d) Copies of notices shall also be accessible to the public in the municipal clerk’s office during 
the clerk's business hours.

(3) Requirements Specific to Regional or District Public Bodies.
(a) Notice shall be filed and posted in each city and town within the region or district in the
manner prescribed for local public bodies in that city or town.
(b) As an alternative method of notice, a regional or district public body may, by majority vote, 
adopt the regional or district public body’s website as its official notice posting method. A copy 
of each meeting notice shall be kept by the chair of the public body or the chair's designee in
accordance with the applicable records retention schedules.  The public body shall file and post 
notice of the website address, as well as directions on how to locate notices on the website, in each 
city and town within the region or district in the manner prescribed for local public bodies in that 
city or town.

(4) Requirements Specific to Regional School Districts.
(a) The secretary of the regional school district committee shall be considered to be its clerk.  The 
clerk of the regional school district committee shall file notice with the municipal clerk of each city 
and town within such district and each such municipal clerk shall post the notice in the manner 
prescribed for local public bodies in that city or town.
(b) As an alternative method of notice, a regional school district committee may, by majority vote, 
adopt the regional school district’s website as its official notice posting method.  A copy of each 
meeting notice shall be kept by the secretary of the regional school district committee or the
secretary’s designee in accordance with the applicable records retention schedules. The regional 
school district committee shall file and post notice of the website address, as well as directions on 
how to locate notices on the website, in each city and town within the region or district in the
manner prescribed for local public bodies in that city or town.

(5) Requirements Specific to County Public Bodies.
(a) Notice shall be filed and posted in the office of the county commissioners and a copy of the 
notice shall be publicly posted in a manner conspicuously visible to the public at all hours in such 
place or places as the county commissioners shall designate for this purpose.
(b) As an alternative method of notice, a county public body may, by majority vote, adopt the 
county public body’s website as its official notice posting method.  A copy of the notice shall be 
kept by the chair of the county public body or the chair's designee in accordance with the
applicable records retention schedules.  The county public body shall file and post notice of the 
website address, as well as directions on how to locate notices on the website, in the office of the 
county commissioners and a copy of the notice shall be publicly posted in a manner conspicuously 
visible to the public at all hours in such place or places as the county commissioners shall designate 
for this purpose.

owen.fletcher
Highlight



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

      

   

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.03: continued 

(6) Requirements Specific to State Public Bodies. Notice shall be posted on a website. A copy of 
each notice shall also be sent by first class or electronic mail to the Secretary of the Commonwealth's 
Regulations Division.  The chair of each state public body shall notify the Attorney General in writing 
of its webpage for listing meeting notices and any change to the webpage location.  The public body 
shall consistently use the most current website location on file with the Attorney General.  A copy of 
the notice shall be kept by the chair of the state public body or the chair's designee in accordance with 
the applicable records retention schedules. 

(7) Websites. Where a public body adopts a website as its method of noticing meetings, it must make 
every effort to ensure that the website is accessible to the public at all hours.  If a website becomes 
inaccessible to members of the public within 48 hours of a meeting, not including Saturdays, Sundays, 
and legal holidays, the municipal clerk or other individual responsible for posting notice to the website 
must restore the website to accessibility within six hours of the time, during regular business hours, when 
such individual discovers that the website has become inaccessible.  In the event that the website is not 
restored to accessibility within six business hours of the website’s deficiency being discovered, the 
public body must re-post notice of its meeting for another date and time in accordance with M.G.L. 
c. 30A, § 20(b). 

29.04: Certification 

(1) For local public bodies, the municipal clerk, and for all other public bodies, the appointing 
authority, executive director, or other appropriate administrator or their designees, shall, upon a public 
body member's qualification for office, either deliver to the public body member, or require the public 
body member to obtain from the Attorney General's website, the following educational materials: 

(a) The Attorney General’s Open Meeting Law Guide, which will include an explanation of the 
requirements of the Open Meeting Law; the Open Meeting Law, M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 
25; and 940 CMR 29.00. 
(b) A copy of each Open Meeting Law determination issued to that public body by the Attorney 
General within the last five years in which the Attorney General found a violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, 
§§ 18 through 25. Open Meeting Law determinations are available at the Attorney General’s 
website. 

(2)  Educational materials may be delivered to public body members by paper copy or in digital form. 

(3)   Within two weeks after receipt of the educational materials, the public body member shall certify, 
on the form prescribed by the Attorney General, receipt of the educational materials.  The municipal 
clerk, appointing authority, executive director or other appropriate administrator, or their designees, 
shall maintain the signed certification for each such person, indicating the date the person received the 
materials. 

(4) An individual serving on multiple public bodies must sign a certification for each public body on 
which he or she serves.  A public body member does not need to sign a separate certification when 
joining a subcommittee of the public body. 

(5) A public body member must sign a new certification upon reelection or reappointment to the 
public body. 

29.05:  Complaints 

(1)  All complaints shall be in writing, using the form approved by the Attorney General and available 
on the Attorney General’s website. A public body need not, and the Attorney General will not, 
investigate or address anonymous complaints.  A public body need not address a complaint that is not 
signed by the complainant.  A public body need not address a complaint that is not filed using the 
Attorney General’s complaint form. 

(2) Public bodies, or the municipal clerk in the case of a local public body, should provide any person, 
on request, with an Open Meeting Law Complaint Form. If a paper copy is unavailable, then the 
public body should direct the requesting party to the Attorney General’s website, where an electronic 
copy of the form will be available for downloading and printing. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

 

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.05: continued 

(3)   For local public bodies, the complainant shall file the complaint with the chair of the public body, 
who shall disseminate copies of the complaint to the members of the public body.  The complainant 
shall also file a copy of the complaint with the municipal clerk, who shall keep such filings in an orderly 
fashion for public review on request during regular business hours. For all other public bodies, the 
complainant shall file the complaint with the chair of the relevant public body, or if there is no chair, then 
with the public body. 

(4) The complaint shall be filed within 30 days of the alleged violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 
through 25 or, if the alleged violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25 could not reasonably have 
been known at the time it occurred, then within 30 days of the date it should reasonably have been 
discovered. 

(5) Within 14 business days after receiving the complaint, unless an extension has been granted by 
the Attorney General as provided in 940 CMR 29.05(5)(b), the public body shall meet to review the 
complaint’s allegations; take remedial action, if appropriate; and send to the complainant a response 
and a description of any remedial action taken.  The public body shall simultaneously notify the 
Attorney General that it has sent such materials to the complainant and shall provide the Attorney 
General with a copy of the complaint, the response, and a description of any remedial action taken. 

(a)  Any remedial action taken by the public body in response to a complaint under 940 CMR 
29.05(5) shall not be admissible as evidence that a violation occurred in any later administrative or 
judicial proceeding against the public body relating to the alleged violation. 
(b) If the public body requires additional time to resolve the complaint, it may obtain an extension 
from the Attorney General by submitting a written request within 14 business days after receiving 
the complaint. A request may be submitted by the chair, the public body’s attorney, or any person 
designated by the public body or the chair.  The Attorney General will grant an extension if the 
request demonstrates good cause.  Good cause will generally be found if, for example, the public 
body cannot meet within the 14 business day period to consider proposed remedial action.  The 
Attorney General shall notify the complainant of any extension and the reason for it. 

(6)  If the public body needs additional information to resolve the complaint, then the chair may request 
it from the complainant within seven business days of receiving the complaint.  The complainant shall 
respond within ten business days after receiving the request.  The public body will then have an 
additional ten business days after receiving the complainant’s response to review the complaint and take 
any remedial action pursuant to 940 CMR 29.05(5). 

(7) If at least 30 days have passed after the complaint was filed with the public body, and if the 
complainant is unsatisfied with the public body’s resolution of the complaint, the complainant may file 
a complaint with the Attorney General.  When filing a complaint with the Attorney General, the 
complainant shall include a copy of the original complaint along with any other materials the complainant 
believes are relevant.  The Attorney General shall decline to investigate complaints filed with the 
Attorney General more than 90 days after the alleged violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, 
or if the alleged violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, could not reasonably have been known 
at the time it occurred, then within 90 days of the date it should reasonably have been discovered. 
However, this time may be extended if the Attorney General grants an extension to the public body to 
respond to a complaint or if the complainant demonstrates good cause for the delay in filing with the 
Attorney General. 

(8) The Attorney General shall acknowledge receipt of all complaints and will resolve them within a 
reasonable period of time, generally 90 days. 

(9)  Mediation to Resolve a Complaint. 
(a)   If a complainant files five complaints alleging violations of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, 
with the same public body or within the same municipality within 12 months, upon the fifth or 
subsequent complaint to that public bodyor a public body within that municipality within the 
12-month period, the public body may request mediation with the complainant, at the public body's 
expense, to resolve the complaint.  A mediator is defined by M.G.L. c. 233, § 23C, and will be 
selected by the Attorney General. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

        

  

 

 

 
 

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.05: continued 

(b) A public body must request mediation prior to, or with, its response to the complaint. If the 
mediation does not produce an agreement, the public body will have ten business days from the 
last joint meeting with the mediator to respond to the complaint. 
(c)  A public body may participate in mediation in open session, in executive session through 
M.G.L. c. 30A, § 21(a)(9), or by designating a representative to participate on behalf of the public 
body. 
(d)  If the complainant declines to participate in mediation after a public body's request in 
accordance with 940 CMR 29.05(9)(a), the Attorney General may decline to review the complaint 
if it is thereafter filed with the Attorney General. 
(e)   If the mediation does not resolve the complaint to the satisfaction of both parties, then the 
complainant may file a copy of his or her complaint with the Attorney General and request the 
Attorney General’s review. The complaint must be filed with the Attorney General within 30 days 
of the last joint meeting with the mediator. 
(f)   Any written agreement reached in mediation shall become a public record in its entirety and 
must be publicly disclosed at the next meeting of the public body following execution of the 
agreement. 
(g)  Nothing in 940 CMR 29.05(9) shall prevent a complainant from filing subsequent complaints, 
however public bodies may continue to request mediation in an effort to resolve complaints in 
accordance with 940 CMR 29.05(9)(a). 
(h) Nothing in 940 CMR 29.05(9) shall prevent a public body or complainant from seeking 
mediation to resolve any complaint.  However, only mediation requests that follow the requirements 
of 940 CMR 29.05(9)(a) will trigger the application of 940 CMR 29.05(9)(d). 

29.06: Investigation 

Following a timely complaint filed pursuant to 940 CMR 29.05, where the Attorney General has 
reasonable cause to believe that a violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25 has occurred, then 
the Attorney General may conduct an investigation. 

(1) The Attorney General shall notify the public body or person that is the subject of a complaint of 
the existence of the investigation within a reasonable period of time.  The Attorney General shall also 
notify the public body or person of the nature of the alleged violation. 

(2) Upon notice of the investigation, the subject of the investigation shall provide the Attorney General 
with all information relevant to the investigation.  The subject may also submit a memorandum or other 
writing to the Attorney General addressing the allegations being investigated. 

If the subject of the investigation fails to voluntarily provide the necessary or relevant information 
within 30 days of receiving notice of the investigation, the Attorney General may issue one or more civil 
investigative demands to obtain the information in accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 24(a), to: 

(a)  Take testimony under oath; 
(b) Examine or cause to be examined any documentary material; or 
(c)   Require attendance during such examination of documentary material by any person having 
knowledge of the documentary material and take testimony under oath or acknowledgment in 
respect of any such documentary material. 
Any documentary material or other information produced by any person pursuant to 940 CMR 

29.06 shall not, unless otherwise ordered by a court of the Commonwealth for good cause shown, be 
disclosed without that person's consent by the Attorney General to any person other than the Attorney 
General's authorized agent or representative.  However, the Attorney General may disclose the material 
in court pleadings or other papers filed in court; or, to the extent necessary, in an administrative hearing 
or in a written determination to resolve the investigation pursuant to 940 CMR 29.07. 

29.07: Resolution 

(1) No Violation. If the Attorney General determines after investigation that M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 
through 25 has not been violated, the Attorney General shall issue a written determination to the subject 
of the complaint and copy any complainant. 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  

  

  
 

       

   
 

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.07: continued 

(2) Violation Resolved Without Hearing. If the Attorney General determines after investigation that 
M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25 has been violated, the Attorney General may resolve the 
investigation without a hearing.  The Attorney General shall determine whether the relevant public body, 
one or more of its members, or both, were responsible.  The Attorney General will notify in writing any 
complainant of the investigation's resolution.  Upon finding a violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 
25, the Attorney General may take one of the following actions: 

(a)   Informal Action.  The Attorney General may resolve the investigation with a letter or other 
appropriate form of written communication that explains the violation and clarifies the subject's 
obligations under M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, providing the subject with a reasonable period 
of time to comply with any outstanding obligations. 
(b) Formal Order.  The Attorney General may resolve the investigation with a formal order. The 
order may require: 

1. immediate and future compliance with M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25; 
2.   attendance at a training session authorized by the Attorney General; 
3.   nullification of any action taken at the relevant meeting, in whole or in part; 
4.   that minutes, records or other materials be made public;  
5. that an employee be reinstated without loss of compensation, seniority, tenure or other 
benefits; or 
6. other appropriate action. 
Orders shall be available on the Attorney General's website. 

(3) Violation Resolved After Hearing. The Attorney General may conduct a hearing where the 
Attorney General deems appropriate.  The hearing shall be conducted pursuant to 801 CMR 
1.00:  Formal Rules, as modified by any regulations issued by the Attorney General.  At the conclusion 
of the hearing, the Attorney General shall determine whether a violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 
through 25 occurred, and whether the public body, one or more of its members, or both, were 
responsible. The Attorney General will notify in writing any complainant of the investigation's 
resolution. Upon a finding that a violation occurred, the Attorney General may order: 

(a)  immediate and future compliance with M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25; 
(b)  attendance at a training session authorized by the Attorney General; 
(c)  nullification of any action taken at the relevant meeting, in whole or in part; 
(d) imposition of a fine upon the public body of not more than $1,000 for each intentional 
violation; however, a fine will not be imposed where a public body or public body member acted 
in good faith compliance with the advice of the public body's legal counsel, in accordance with 
M.G.L. 30A, § 23(g); 
(e) that an employee be reinstated without loss of compensation, seniority, tenure or other 
benefits; 
(f)   that minutes, records or other materials be made public; or 
(g)  other appropriate action. 
Orders issued following a hearing shall be available on the Attorney General's website. 

(4) A public body, subject to an order of the Attorney General following a written determination 
issued pursuant to 940 CMR 29.07, shall notify the Attorney General in writing of its compliance with 
the order within 30 days of receipt of the order, unless otherwise indicated by the order itself.  A public 
body need not notify the Attorney General of its compliance with an order requiring immediate and 
future compliance pursuant to 940 CMR 29.07(2)(b)1. or 940 CMR 29.07(3)(a). 

(5) A public body or any member of a body aggrieved by any order issued by the Attorney General 
under 940 CMR 29.07 may obtain judicial review of the order through an action in Superior Court 
seeking relief in the nature of certiorari. Any such action must be commenced in Superior Court within 
21 days of receipt of the order. 

29.08: Advisory Opinions 

The Attorney General will generally not issue advisory opinions.  However, the Attorney General 
may issue written guidance to address common requests for interpretation.  Such written guidance will 
appear on the Attorney General’s website. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    
     

 

 

   

 

 

 

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.09: Other Enforcement Actions 

Nothing in 940 CMR 29.06 or 29.07 shall limit the Attorney General's authority to file a civil action 
to enforce M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25 pursuant to M.G.L. c. 30A, § 23(f). 

29.10: Remote Participation 

(1) Preamble. Remote participation may be permitted subject to the following procedures and 
restrictions.  However, the Attorney General strongly encourages members of public bodies to 
physically attend meetings whenever possible.  By promulgating 940 CMR 29.10, the Attorney General 
hopes to promote greater participation in government.  Members of public bodies have a responsibility 
to ensure that remote participation in meetings is not used in a way that would defeat the purposes of 
M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, namely promoting transparency with regard to deliberations and 
decisions on which public policy is based. 

(2) Adoption of Remote Participation. Remote participation in meetings of public bodies is not 
permitted unless the practice has been adopted as follows: 

(a)  Local Public Bodies.  The Chief Executive Officer, as defined in M.G.L. c. 4, § 7, must 
authorize or, by a simple majority, vote to allow remote participation in accordance with the 
requirements of 940 CMR 29.10, with that authorization or vote applying to all subsequent 
meetings of all local public bodies in that municipality. 
(b)  Regional or District Public Bodies.  The regional or district public body must, by a simple 
majority, vote to allow remote participation in accordance with the requirements of 940 CMR 
29.10, with that vote applying to all subsequent meetings of that public body and its committees. 
(c)   Regional School Districts.  The regional school district committee must, by a simple majority, 
vote to allow remote participation in accordance with the requirements of 940 CMR 29.10, with 
that vote applying to all subsequent meetings of that public body and its committees. 
(d) County Public Bodies. The county commissioners must, by a simple majority, vote to allow 
remote participation in accordance with the requirements of 940 CMR 29.10, with that vote 
applying to all subsequent meetings of all county public bodies in that county. 
(e)  State Public Bodies.  The state public body must, by a simple majority, vote to allow remote 
participation in accordance with the requirements of 940 CMR 29.10, with that vote applying to 
all subsequent meetings of that public body and its committees. 
(f)   Retirement Boards.  A retirement board created pursuant to M.G.L. c. 32, § 20 or M.G.L. c. 
34B, § 19 must, by a simple majority, vote to allow remote participation in accordance with the 
requirements of 940 CMR 29.10, with that vote applying to all subsequent meetings of that public 
body and its committees. 
(g)  Local Commissions on Disability. In accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 20(e), a local 
commission on disability may, by majority vote of the commissioners at a regular meeting, authorize 
remote participation applicable to a specific meeting or generally to all of the commission’s 
meetings.  If a local commission on disability is authorized to utilize remote participation, a physical 
quorum of that commission’s members shall not be required to be present at the meeting location; 
provided, however, that the chair or, in the chair’s absence, the person authorized to chair the 
meeting, shall be physically present at the meeting location.  The commission shall comply with all 
other requirements of law. 

(3)  Revocation of Remote Participation.  Any person or entity with the authority to adopt remote 
participation pursuant to 940 CMR 29.10(2) may revoke that adoption in the same manner. 

(4) Minimum Requirements for Remote Participation. 
(a)   Members of a public body who participate remotely and all persons present at the meeting 
location shall be clearly audible to each other as required by M.G.L. c. 30A, § 20(d); 
(b)  A quorum of the body, including the chair or, in the chair's absence, the person authorized to 
chair the meeting, shall be physically present at the meeting location as required by M.G.L. c. 30A, 
§ 20(d); 
(c)   Members of public bodies who participate remotely may vote and shall not be deemed absent 
for the purposes of M.G.L. c. 39, § 23D. 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

     
       

 

  

  

            

   

 

  

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.10: continued 

(5)  Permissible Reason for Remote Participation. If remote participation has been adopted in 
accordance with 940 CMR 29.10(2), a member of a public body shall be permitted to participate 
remotely in a meeting in accordance with the procedures described in 940 CMR 29.10(7) only if 
physical attendance would be unreasonably difficult. 

(6)   Technology. 
(a)   The following media are acceptable methods for remote participation.  Remote participation 
by any other means is not permitted.  Accommodations shall be made for any public body member 
who requires TTY service, video relay service, or other form of adaptive telecommunications. 

1.   telephone, internet, or satellite enabled audio or video conferencing; 
2. any other technology that enables the remote participant and all persons present at the 
meeting location to be clearly audible to one another. 

(b) When video technology is in use, the remote participant shall be clearly visible to all persons 
present in the meeting location. 
(c)  The public body shall determine which of the acceptable methods may be used by its 
members. 
(d) The chair or, in the chair's absence, the person chairing the meeting, may decide how to 
address technical difficulties that arise as a result of utilizing remote participation, but is encouraged 
wherever possible to suspend discussion while reasonable efforts are made to correct any problem 
that interferes with a remote participant's ability to hear or be heard clearly by all persons present 
at the meeting location.  If technical difficulties result in a remote participant being disconnected 
from the meeting, that fact and the time at which the disconnection occurred shall be noted in the 
meeting minutes. 
(e)  The amount and source of payment for any costs associated with remote participation shall 
be determined by the applicable adopting entity identified in 940 CMR 29.10(2). 

(7) Procedures for Remote Participation. 
(a)  Any member of a public body who wishes to participate remotely shall, as soon as reasonably 
possible prior to a meeting, notify the chair or, in the chair's absence, the person chairing the 
meeting, of his or her desire to do so and the reason for and facts supporting his or her request. 
(b) At the start of the meeting, the chair shall announce the name of any member who will be 
participating remotely.  This information shall also be recorded in the meeting minutes. 
(c)  All votes taken during any meeting in which a member participates remotely shall be by roll 
call vote. 
(d) A member participating remotely may participate in an executive session, but shall state at the 
start of any such session that no other person is present and/or able to hear the discussion at the 
remote location, unless presence of that person is approved by a simple majority vote of the public 
body. 
(e)  When feasible, the chair or, in the chair's absence, the person chairing the meeting, shall 
distribute to remote participants in advance of the meeting, copies of any documents or exhibits that 
he or she reasonably anticipates will be used during the meeting.  If used during the meeting, such 
documents shall be part of the official record of the meeting and shall be listed in the meeting 
minutes and retained in accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 22. 

(8) Further Restriction by Adopting Authority. 940 CMR 29.10 does not prohibit any person or 
entity with the authority to adopt remote participation pursuant to 940 CMR 29.10(2) from enacting 
policies, laws, rules or regulations that prohibit or further restrict the use of remote participation by 
public bodies within that person or entity's jurisdiction, provided those policies, laws, rules or 
regulations do not violate state or federal law. 

(9) Remedy for Violation. If the Attorney General determines after investigation that 940 CMR 29.10 
has been violated, the Attorney General may resolve the investigation by ordering the public body to 
temporarily or permanently discontinue its use of remote participation. 



 

 

 

   

   

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.11: Meeting Minutes 

(1) A public bodyshall create and maintain accurate minutes of all meetings including executive 
sessions, setting forth the date, time and place, the members present or absent, a summary of the 
discussions on each subject, a list of documents and other exhibits used at the meeting, the decisions 
made and the actions taken at each meeting, including the record of all votes in accordance with 
M.G.L. c. 30A, § 22(a). 

(2) Minutes of all open and executive sessions shall be created and approved in a timely manner.  A 
“timely manner” will generally be considered to be within the next three public body meetings or within 
30 days, whichever is later, unless the public body can show good cause for further delay.  The 
Attorney General encourages public bodies to approve minutes at the next meeting whenever possible. 

REGULATORY AUTHORITY 

940 CMR 29.00:  M.G.L. c. 30A, § 25(a) and (b). 



20190306 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8a 
 

Authorizing the approval of a reimbursement request from Jack Yunits, County 
Administrator, for the period of January 7, 2019 through March 5, 2019  



a 

U ~ 
w a 
G`' O O G,:„ 
A H 
Wz N W
U ~ 
r=1 w .a ~ 

wa 
w~ 
w~ 

O W 

as 

W 

Ja
ck

 Y
un

its
 

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 N
A

M
E

 

~o 
N 

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 V
E

N
D

O
R

 C
O

D
E

#
 

C 

E 

U 

7 
O 
U 

F 
z 

a 

0 Ja
nu

ar
y 

-M
ar

ch
 20

19
 

I~
C1

],~
IM

si~
lu'

[1
)►

YY
O[

17
~ 

A
L

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 C

H
A

R
G

E
S

 

F-
z 

O 

Q 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 N

U
M

B
E

R
 

N 
00 
N 

N 
O 
O 

T
O

T
A

L
 C

H
A

R
G

E
S

 

Fo
rm

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Au

gu
st

 2
01

8 



"` 
~_' ~'1ti 

>, 
~` 

~'>~;=z~~N.. 

~~. 

~ ,'. 
~ Sy 
~~~..0 
' a"~'^ 

"f
O

T
A

L
 

0 ~o 
~ 

0 
00 

M 10
2.

20
0 

17
.4

00
 

17
.4

00
 

17
.4

00
 

58
.5

80
 

0 ~ 
~ 

0 o 
O 

0 0 
O 

0 0 
O 

0 0 
O 

0 0 
O 

o 0 
O 

c 
•- 
G~ 

o 
00a 
1f~ 
M 

' 
~ 

.ay
e 

~..
.. 

$4
3.

06
/d

ar
 m

ax
 fo

r 
in

-s
ta

te
 

M
E

A
L

S
 

N M 
^ 

Q N 

O 
~ 
O 

L
u
n
c
h
 

13
.3

4 

C 
C 

O 

B
r
e
a
k
f
a
s
t
 

7.
89

 

O 
O 

O 

c 

O 
C 

O 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 

&
 P

ar
k
in

g
 O 

N 

Ort 

~~ 

U 
h 

O 
O 

~-- 

O
D

O
M

E
T

E
R

 

W 

4
7
3
5
0
 

4
7
4
8
2
 

4
7
6
3
0
 

4
7
6
6
0
 

4
9
8
4
0
 

5
0
0
4
3
 

5
1
3
0
5
 

5
2
0
5
4
 

Li .~ 

M~ 
W 

4
7
2
1
0
 

4
7
4
2
2
 

4
7
4
9
0
 

4
7
6
3
0
 

4
9
8
1
0
 

5
0
0
1
3
 

5
1
2
0
4
 

5
2
0
3
4
 

0 
O 
O 
O 

0 
C 
C 
C~ 

0 x ,~ 

_ 

Cf~ 

E
x

p
e
n

se
 i

n
c
u
rr

e
d
 i

n
 t

r 

I 
~•
 

~ 

A
m

o
u
n
t 

81
.2

00
 

34
.8

00
 

81
.2

00
 

17
.4

00
 O

O
b'L

 [ 

0 
O 
7~~ 
^ 

0 
oo 

oo 
V1 .--i 

0 
O 

~-+ 

0 
O 
0 
O 

0 
O 
0 
O 

0 
O 
0 
O 

0 
O 
O 
O 

0 
O 
O 
O 

y 

C

~ 

L 

7 
ti

~ 
~O 
~--i 

O O O O 
rw 

O O O O O O O C C 

W 

H 

~~,~ 
,Q 
~ 

y 

I~1
-i

T
o
 a

n
d
 R

et
u

m
 

B
o

st
o

n
 

F
al

m
o

u
th

 

B
o

st
o

n
 

F
al

m
o

u
th

 

O
rl

ea
n
s 

B
o

u
rn

e 

s 
o.' 
0 
b 
c 

IM
as

h
p
ee

 

T
o
ta

ls
: 

F
r
o
m
 

~ 

U 

~ 

U 

~ 

U 

~ 

U 

~ 

U C
o
u
n
 ~ 

U 

~ 

U 

i RS 

A

a 
o 
N 

etr.. 

a 
0 
N 

~ 

o~ 
0 
N 

O 

:,

a' 
0 
N 

O 

:~

2/
7/

20
19

 
2/

14
/2

01
9 

2/
20

/2
01

9 rn
0 
N 

M

2
0
1
8
 G

S
A

 S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 M
E

A
L

 &
IN

C
ID

E
N

T
A

L
 

A
L

L
O

W
A

N
C

E
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

0 0 
0 

0 0 
0 

0 0 
0 

0 0 
0 

0 0 
0 

0 0 
0 

0 c 
c 

`v

C 

O 
O 

t 

G 
.~ 

v

Br
ea

kf
as

t O 
C 

G 

(s
) 
in

c
u
rr

e
d
 i

n
 t

ra
v

e
li

n
g

 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
o
ff

ic
ia

l 
d
u
ti

e
s.

 

~
1
~
 

-
 

C 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 

&
 P

ar
k
in

g
 C 

M
is

c.
 

~ 
O 

. 

O 

E
n
d
 

B
eg

in
 

P
re

 A
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 e

x
p

e
n

se
 

A
m

o
u
n
t 0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

y 
N 

G+ ~~.- ,... ~- ~ ~ Q 

W 

To
 a

nd
 R

et
um

 

A 

h 

H 
d~ 
F 

~ 

W 
O 

O 



M 

M 

a0 

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 /
E

L
E

C
T

E
D

 O
F

F
IC

IA
L

 R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

 F
O

R
M

 

Ja
ck

 Y
u
n
it

s 

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 V
E

N
D

O
R

 C
O

D
E

 #
 

00 
N C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
e
rs

 

Q 
W 

~. 
N 
C 
O .~ 

.~ 

O 

~.J 
_~ 
C 

O 

U 
N 
U 

Q 

H 

b-0 
'O 

s, 

Q 

Q 

H 

U 
F-' 

a 

0 
N 

0 
N N 

c 
N 

0 
N 

N 

N 

v 

N 

0 
N 

N_

N 

G 
N 

M 



SNOI1d1S .ltld 
3H1 ld ~ldd 

f1O,l Hll/bi 13~fO113~1d1 
L0~98~ _.._ 

_.._ 

swept' ~(ou{np 
~~Nl~l~dd blew 

QQz~~~ 

i 
i 

i i i i i 

r. ~~ ~_ ~~ 
a~ 
~-

c~ 
c; 

~- 

«~ 

C) 

Q~ 

T ~ 

r~ 

C) 
~= c~ 

a!gepun;w-uory 'us!ols ~o iso! ;! a!geaoe!da~ loN 
asns!w io; paleos!;uoo aq,(ew 1a~!o1'asn;o 

suog!Puoo pue suo!le!n6a3 puel a!geogd a of 3oalgng 

... 

X1
01

 0
45

20
0 

wa za:eo E~n]'~'::0: iu 

Li:tiT ~ tga0 

:~td-1a?I~~d 
i;tuI 

OIVINt{t!d ~IlBrlr!-'.~{ 

00' 0 $ a~~IJ 
Ls;8i 's116tp b ise~ 

00 6 $ p,~0ualspW 

V~ 

L~~-Ql 
o OU'6 $ 11rx~~a0 
3 LOi98t #~a~lo I l 
v 0586; ~ ue.~l 

Zt :uoll.eiS bpd 
~8£ ' 4E p0 : uo I ie~rt~p 

d Wd 05~tt 6i/LO/i0 
:awtl 11x3 

a W~ It~8 6t/LO/i0 
aw { 1 ~t.~lu3 

O ~, ~ ~ o ~rl j ~•,~, F'~'-a ~~ ~ ~~ ~~ ~-~ 
su!apy ~(oulnp 
swept' h:r., l np 

n~No saaa~ 1I032iJ o ~ ~~ ® ~ _- ---
6i0L05iiL0i0Zi0SEf; 

O 

~? 



20190306 

AGENDA ITEM 8b 
Authorizing the appointment of Joshua Mason to the Barnstable County HOME 
Consortium, as the representative for the Town of Dennis, replacing James 
Kyrimes, for an unexpired term through January 31, 2020, as recommended by 
the Dennis Board of Selectmen 



To: 

From: 

RE: 

Date: 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

3195 Main Street, Post Office Box 427 
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630 

Office: 508-375-6628 ~ Fax: 508-362-0290 
www.bchu manservices.net 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY HOME PROGRAM 

MEMORANDUM 

Barnstable County Commissioners 

Renie Hamman, HOME Program Manager 

HOME Consortium Advisory Council 

March 6, 2019 

The Town of Dennis Board of Selectmen have appointed Joshua Mason as the Dennis 

Representative to the Barnstable County HOME Consortium Advisory Council to fill a vacant 

term expiring January 31, 2021 (BOS appointment letter attached). This position on the 

Advisory Council has been vacant since the resignation of the former Town of Dennis 

Representative in September 2018. 

I recommend that you support the Town's nominee and appoint Joshua Mason for the term 

expiring January 31, 2021. 

Ronald Bergstrom, Commissioner 

Mary Pat Flynn, Commissioner 

Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner 

Creating a Healthy Connected Cape Cod 
The Mission of the Department of Numon Services is to plan, develop, and implement programs which enhance the overall delivery of human services 
in Barnstable County and promote the health and social well-being of County residents through regional efforts that improve coordination of services. 



Town of Dennis 
6235 Ruute 133 •South Chnnis, MA 02660 / Tclephcmr: 508-3~i-t-83(3(1 •Fax W8-39=1-it3(l9 

Barnstable County Commissioners 
c/o Barnstable County Health and Human Services 
PO Box 427 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

February 21, 2019 

Re: Barnstable County HOME Consortium 

Dear County Commissioners; 

At their meeting on Tuesday, February 19, 2019, the Dennis Board of Selectmen unanimously voted to 
appoint Joshua Mason as the Dennis Representative to the Barnstable County HOME Consortium for a 
term to expire January 31, 2021. This position has been vacant since the resignation of the former 
Dennis Representative, James Kyrimes, in September. We respectfully request that the Barnstable 
County Commissioners confirm this appointment. Mr. Mason has been an active and appointed member 
of the Dennis Municipal Affordable Housing Trust since October 30, 201$. The Dennis Municipal 
Affordable Housing Trust voted to endorse Mr. Mason to serve on the HOME Consortium at their 
January meeting. 

We thank you for your consideration of Mr. Mason's appointment to the Barnstable County HOME 
Consortium as the Dennis Representative. 

Sincere( 

Paul McCormick Chairman 
Dennis Board of Selectmen 

J 

Unginal an Rccyckd Papa 



20190306 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8c 
 

Authorizing a cooperative agreement with the Town of Dennis to do and perform 
all dredge related work at Approach Channel for an amount not to exceed 
$11,250.00 

  



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
AND 

TOWN OF DENNIS 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this   day of , 20I9 by and 
between the County of Barnstable, hereinafter called the "County,' and the Town of Dennis. 

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to have the County undertake the dredging projects covered by this 
agreement more specifically described by way of the attached plan pursuant to the terms and 
conditions directed herein. 

ARTICLE I. STATEMENT OF WORK 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and in the interest of the mutual 
advantage in attainment of common objectives, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY AGREES: 

l . To do and perform all dredge related work for the Town of Dennis at Approach Channel in 
accordance with the specifications, drawings and plans (Attachment I) up to a maximum 
contract amount of $11,250.00. This is based on removing up to approximately 1,2~p 
cubic yards of material at $9.00 per cubic yard and the charge for 
mobilizationldemobilization costs as set forth in Article III herein. Final and complete 
specifications, plans and drawings shall be provided to the County by the Town in a timely 
manner.

2. To observe, comply with, and be subject to all terms, conditions, requirements, and 
limitations of the specifications, plans, drawings, and permits identified in Attachment I as 
applicable to dredging and rough placement of materials. 

3 To provide a hydraulic dredge and all related equipment to conduct maintenance dredging 
for the Town, according to and guided by the specifications, plans, drawings as provided. 

4. To pump dredge materials and provide rough beach placement of said materials at a rate of 
$9.00 per cubic yard for standard dredge material. This price includes before and after 
dredge surveys to be performed by the County. The County warrants that the final surveys 
are performed for the limited purpose of substantiating dredge volumes and under no 
conditions should said surveys be utilized to delineate navigable channels. The County 
shall provide the Town access to detailed survey work through Provincetown Coastal at the 
Town's request and at the s own` s expem . 



5. To comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and lawful orders of any 
public authority bearing on the safety of persons or property or their protection from 
damage injury or loss or on dredging or handling of dredge materials. 

6. To the extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless any party sustaining 

damage or loss resulting from the negligence ofthe County and its employees with respect 

to the County's performance of its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing in the 
previous sentence shall be construed as a waiver of the limitations on the Town's liability 

under the Massachusetts Tort Claims Act or under other provisions of this agreement. 

7. Immediately notify the Town and cease operations whenever the dredging operations 
exceed by more than i 0 °Io the specifications, drawings and plans agreed to as the volume 

scope of the agreement or whenever situations or conditions are encountered outside the 

scope of the specifications, drawings, and plans that were nor reasonably foreseeable. The 
parties agree that variations on the scope of 10 %more than or less than the proposed scope 

of work is reasonable due to climatic and coastal changes and that price adjustments shall 
be made accordingly. The parties further agree that changes in excess of 10 %shall require 
the parties to adjust this contract in writing pursuant to Article V. 

8. Without the prior approval of the Town, the dredge will operate between the hours of 7:00 

A.M. and 5:00 P.M, Monday through Saturday. 

THE TOWN OF DENNIS AGREES: 

To obtain all required federal, state, and Iocal permits and approvals to conduct the dredge 

project. 

2. To furnish all specifications, drawings, and plans required to perform the dredge project at 

the execution of this document. Said documents will be incorporated by referenee as 

Attachmeut I. 

To conduct required inspections and testing consistent with federal, state and local permits 

and approvals. 

4. To inspect the County's on-site dredging work in a timely manner. 

5. To obligate funds to conduct the dredging work specified in Attachment I. 

6. To indemnify and hold harmless any party sustaining damage or loss resulting from the 

negligence of the Town with respect to the Town's performance of its obligations under 

this Agreement. No provisions in this agreement or otherwise shall be construed as a 

waiver ofthe limitations on the Town's liability under the Massachusetts Tort Claims Act. 



BOTH BARNSTABLE COUNTY AND THE TOWN OF DENNIS AGREE: 

That rn3thing herein shall be construed as obligating either Barnstable County or the Town of 

Dennis to expend funds or to be obligated to spend funds beyond the scope of this contract. 

This AGREEMENT may only be modified in the form of amendments in writing by mutual 

a~e~nent by both parties. Request for modification will be forwarded to one party by the other 

Party by written notice. 

ARTICLE II. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

This AGREEMENT shall be effective when signed by all parties and shall remain in effect until 

the dredging identified in Attachment I is completed to the mutual satisfaction of aiI parties. 

ARTICLE III. PAYMENT TO COUNTY: 

The cost of the project shall be based on a per cubic yard basis and calculated on the total cubic 

yards of material moved, using standard engineering practices, except as specified in Article VIII, 

and the mobilization and demobilization costs. The cast per cubic yard is X9.00. The Town shall 

be billed, and the County shall be paid for the following services: 

Mobilization costs for project is 0% of total cost 

i 00% mavementlplacement of dredge materials, 

Demobilization costs for the project is 0% of total cast 

The Town shall submit payment within 30 days of date of invoice to the County. Failure to pay 

said invoice within 30 days will result in the assessment of a late fee in the amount of 1%per 

month (i2%° annually) on the unpaid balance remaining after the 30th day. Said late fee will be 

assessed daily 0.033%. Failure to pay invoice within 90 days may result in legal action. The 

Town shall be responsible far all legal costs incurred by the County in collection of unpaid debts. 

ARTICLE IV. WEATHER CONDITIONS 

In the event of temporary suspension of work due to inclement weather conditions, the County 

shall cease work with no adverse consequences to the County. The decision to cease work shall 

be made by the County in consultation with the Town. 

ARTICLE V. CHANGES IN WORK 

No changes in the wank covered by this Agreement shall be made without having prior written 



approval of both the Town and County. Costs far additional cubic yardage shall be determined 

utilizing the costs identified in Article III. 

ARTICLE VI. COUNTY INSURANCE 

The County shall maintain the following insurance coverage while conducting the dredge project: 

1. Compensation insurance. The County shall maintain during the life of this Agreement 

Workmen's Compensation Insurance as required by applicable state Iaw. 

2. Protection and Indemnity insurance. 

3 General liability and excess liability insurance. 

4. Pollution insurance. 

5. Contingent water c~ aft liability insurance. 

ARTICLE VII. INDEMNIFICATION 

To the extent permitted by law, Barnstable County agrees to defend, indemnify, defend and 

hold harmless the Town of Dennis from any claims, demands, suits or judgments by third parties 

which may arise out of the negligent activities of Barnstable County or its employees while 

performing its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing in the previous sentence shall be 

construed as a waiver of the limitations on the County's liability under the Massachusetts Tort 

Claims Act or under other provisions of this Agreement. 

To the extent permitted by law, the Town of Dennis agrees to defend, indemnify, defend 

and bald harmless Barnstable County from any claims, demands, suits or judgments by third 

parties which may arise out of the negligent activities of the Town of Dennis or its employees 

while performing its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing in the previous sentence shall be 

construed as a waiver of the limitations on the Town's liability under the Massachusetts Tort 

Claims Act or under other provisions of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VIII TERMINATION 

This Agreement may only be te~niinated after written mutual agreement to do so by both parties. 

The Town shall pay the County all costs incurred by the County to the date of termination. 

including staff time, review of documents and any other costs associated with the project un to said 

termination. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the TOWN and the COUNTY execute this Agreement this 

 day of , ZOI 3. 



BARNSTABLE COUNTY TOWN OF DENNIS: 

COMMISSIONERS: 

~~~
Ronald Bergstrom 

Ronald Beaty 

Mary Pat Flynn 

Date 

~~~~~~
Date 



20190306 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8d 
 

Authorizing a cooperative agreement with the Town of Yarmouth to do and 
perform all dredge related work at Approach Channel for an amount not to 
exceed $11,250.00   



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 

AND 

TOWN OF YARMOUTH 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this   day of , 2019 by and 

between the County of Barnstable, hereinafter called the "County," and the Town of Yarmouth. 

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to have the County undertake the dredging projects covered by this 

agreement more specifically described by way of the attached plan pursuant to the terms and 

conditions directed herein. 

ARTICLE I. STATEMENT OF WORK 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and in the interest of the mutual 

advantage in attainment of common objectives, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY AGREES: 

1. To do and perform all dredge related work for the Town of Yarmouth at Approach Channel 

in accordance with the specifications, drawings and plans (Attachment I) up to a maximum 

contract amount of $11,250.00. This is based on removing up to approximately 1,250 

cubic yards of material at $9.00 per cubic yard and the charge for 

mobilization/demobilization costs as set forth in Article III herein. Final and complete 

specifications, plans and drawings shall be provided to the County by the Town in a timely 

manner. 

2. To observe, comply with, and be subject to all terms, conditions, requirements, and 

limitations of the specifications, plans, drawings, and permits identified in Attachment I as 

applicable to dredging and rough placement of materials. 

3 To provide a hydraulic dredge and all related equipment to conduct maintenance dredging 

for the Town, according to and guided by the specifications, plans, drawings as provided. 

4. To pump dredge materials and provide rough beach placement of said materials at a rate of 

$9.00 per cubic yard for standard dredge material. This price includes before and after 

dredge surveys to be performed by the County. The County warrants that the final surveys 

are performed for the limited purpose of substantiating dredge volumes and under no 

conditions should said surveys be utilized to delineate navigable channels. The County 

shall provide the Town access to detailed survey work through Provincetown Coastal at the 

Town's request and at the Town's expense. 



5. To comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and lawful orders of any 

public authority bearing on the safety of persons or property or their protection from 

damage injury or loss or on dredging or handling of dredge materials. 

6. To the extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless any party sustaining 

damage or loss resulting from the negligence of the County and its employees with respect 

to the County's performance of its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing in the 

previous sentence shall be construed as a waiver of the limitations on the Town's liability 

under the Massachusetts Tort Claims Act or under other provisions of this agreement. 

7. Immediately notify the Town and cease operations whenever the dredging operations 

exceed by more than 10 %the specifications, drawings and plans agreed to as the volume 

scope of the agreement or whenever situations or conditions are encountered outside the 

scope of the specifications, drawings, and plans that were nor reasonably foreseeable. The 

parties agree that variations on the scope of 10 %more than or less than the proposed scope 

of work is reasonable due to climatic and coastal changes and that price adjustments shall 

be made accordingly. The parties further agree that changes in excess of 10 %shall require 

the parties to adjust this contract in writing pursuant to Article V. 

8. Without the prior approval of the Town, the dredge will operate between the hours of 7:00 

A.M. and 5:00 P.M, Monday through Saturday. 

THE TOWN OF DENNIS AGREES: 

1. To obtain all required federal, state, and local permits and approvals to conduct the dredge 

project. 

2. To furnish all specifications, drawings, and plans required to perform the dredge project at 

the execution of this document. Said documents will be incorporated by reference as 

Attachment I. 

3. To conduct required inspections and testing consistent with federal, state and local permits 

and approvals. 

4. To inspect the County's on-site dredging work in a timely manner. 

5. To obligate funds to conduct the dredging work specified in Attachment I. 

6. To indemnify and hold harmless any party sustaining damage or loss resulting from the 

negligence of the Town with respect to the Town's performance of its obligations under 

this Agreement. No provisions in this agreement or otherwise shall be construed as a 
waiver of the limitations on the Town's liability under the Massachusetts Tort Claims Act. 

BOTH BARNSTABLE COUNTY AND THE TOWN OF YARMOUTH AGREE: 



That nothing herein shall be construed as obligating either Barnstable County or the Town of 

Yarmouth to expend funds or to be obligated to spend funds beyond the scope of this contract. 

This AGREEMENT may only be modified in the form of amendments in writing by mutual 

agreement by both parties. Request for modification will be forwarded to one party by the other 

party by written notice. 

ARTICLE II. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

This AGREEMENT shall be effective when signed by all parties and shall remain in effect until 

the dredging identified in Attachment I is completed to the mutual satisfaction of all parties. 

ARTICLE III. PAYMENT TO COUNTY: 

The cost of the project shall be based on a per cubic yard basis and calculated on the total cubic 

yards of material moved, using standard engineering practices, except as specified in Article VIII, 

and the mobilization and demobilization costs. The cost per cubic yard is $9.00. The Town shall 

be billed, and the County shall be paid for the following services: 

Mobilization costs for project is 0% of total cost 

100% movement/placement of dredge materials; 

Demobilization costs for the project is 0% of total cost 

The Town shall submit payment within 30 days of date of invoice to the County. Failure to pay 

said invoice within 30 days will result in the assessment of a late fee in the amount of 1%per 

month (12% annually) on the unpaid balance remaining after the 30th day. Said late fee will be 

assessed daily 0.033%. Failure to pay invoice within 90 days may result in legal action. The 

Town shall be responsible for all legal costs incurred by the County in collection of unpaid debts. 

ARTICLE IV. WEATHER CONDITIONS 

In the event of temporary suspension of work due to inclement weather conditions, the County 

shall cease work with no adverse consequences to the County. The decision to cease work shall 

be made by the County in consultation with the Town. 

ARTICLE V. CHANGES IN WORK 

No changes in the work covered by this Agreement shall be made without having prior written 

approval of both the Town and County. Costs for additional cubic yardage shall be determined 



utilizing the costs identified in Article III. 

ARTICLE VL COUNTY INSURANCE 

The County shall maintain the following insurance coverage while conducting the dredge project: 

1. Compensation insurance. The County shall maintain during the life of this Agreement 

Workmen's Compensation Insurance as required by applicable state law. 

2. Protection and Indemnity insurance. 

3. General liability and excess liability insurance. 

4. Pollution insurance. 

5. Contingent watercraft liability insurance. 

ARTICLE VII. INDEMNIFICATION 

To the extent permitted by law, Barnstable County agrees to defend, indemnify, defend and 

hold harmless the Town of Yarmouth from any claims, demands, suits or judgments by third 

parties which may arise out of the negligent activities of Barnstable County or its employees while 
performing its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing in the previous sentence shall be 

construed as a waiver of the limitations on the County's liability under the Massachusetts Tort 

Claims Act or under other provisions of this Agreement. 

To the extent permitted bylaw, the Town of Yarmouth agrees to defend, indemnify, defend 

and hold harmless Barnstable County from any claims, demands, suits or judgments by third 
parties which may arise out of the negligent activities of the Town of Yarmouth or its employees 
while performing its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing in the previous sentence shall be 
construed as a waiver of the limitations on the Town's liability under the Massachusetts Tort 
Claims Act or under other provisions of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VIII TERMINATION 

This Agreement may only be terminated after written mutual agreement to do so by both parties. 
The Town shall pay the County all costs incurred by the County to the date of termination, 
including staff time, review of documents and any other costs associated with the project up to said 
termination. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the TOWN and the COUNTY execute this Agreement this 
  day of , 2019. 



BARNSTABLE COUNTY TOWN OF YARMOUTH: 

COMMISSIONERS: 

Ronald Bergstrom 

Date 

Ronald Beaty 

Mary Pat Flynn 

Date 



20190306 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8e 
 

Authorizing a cooperative agreement with the Town of Truro to do and perform 
all dredge related work in Pamet Harbor Basin for an amount not to exceed 
$90,000.00  
  



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 

AND 

TOWN OF TRURO 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this   day of , 2019 by and 
between the County of Barnstable, hereinafter called the "County," and the Town of Truro. 

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to have the County undertake the dredging projects covered by 

this agreement more specifically described by way of the attached plan pursuant to the terms and 

conditions directed herein. 

ARTICLE I. STATEMENT OF WORK 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and in the interest of the mutual 

advantage in attainment of common objectives, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY AGREES: 

1. To do and perform all dredge related work for the Town of Truro in Pamet Harbor Basin 

in accordance with the specifications, drawings and plans (Attachment I) up to a 

maximum contract amount of $90,000.00. This is based on removing up to 

approximately 10,000. cubic yards of material at $9.00 per cubic yard and the charge for 

mobilization/demobilization costs as set forth in Article III herein. Final and complete 

specifications, plans and drawings shall be provided to the County by the Town in a 

timely manner. 

2. To observe, comply with, and be subject to all terms, conditions, requirements, and 
limitations of the specifications, plans, drawings, and permits identified in Attachment I 

as applicable to dredging and rough placement of materials. 

3 To provide a hydraulic dredge and all related equipment to conduct maintenance 

dredging for the Town, according to and guided by the specifications, plans, drawings as 

provided. 

4. To pump dredge materials and provide rough beach placement of said materials at a rate 
of $9.00 per cubic yard for standard dredge material. This price includes before and 

after dredge surveys to be performed by the County. The County warrants that the final 
surveys are performed for the limited purpose of substantiating dredge volumes and 

under no conditions should said surveys be utilized to delineate navigable channels. The 

County shall provide the Town access to detailed survey work through Provincetown 



Coastal at the Town's request and at the Town's expense. 

5. To comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and lawful orders of 
any public authority bearing on the safety of persons or property or their protection from 
damage injury or loss or on dredging or handling of dredge materials. 

6. To the extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless any party sustaining 
damage or loss resulting from the negligence of the County and its employees with 
respect to the County's performance of its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing in 
the previous sentence shall be construed as a waiver of the limitations on the Town's 
liability under the Massachusetts Tort Claims Act or under other provisions of this 
agreement. 

7. Immediately notify the Town and cease operations whenever the dredging operations 
exceed by more than 10 %the specifications, drawings and plans agreed to as the volume 
scope of the agreement or whenever situations or conditions are encountered outside the 
scope of the specifications, drawings, and plans that were nor reasonably foreseeable. 

The parties agree that variations on the scope of 10 %more than or less than the proposed 

scope of work is reasonable due to climatic and coastal changes and that price 

adjustments shall be made accordingly. The parties further agree that changes in excess 
of I O %shall require the parties to adjust this contract in writing pursuant to Article V. 

8. Without the prior approval of the Town, the dredge will operate between the hours of 

7:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M, Monday through Saturday. 

THE TOWN OF TRURO AGREES: 

1. To obtain all required federal, state, and local permits and approvals to conduct the 

dredge project. 

2. To furnish all specifications, drawings, and plans required to perform the dredge project 

at the execution of this document. Said documents will be incorporated by reference as 

Attachment I. 

3. To conduct required inspections and testing consistent with federal, state and local 

permits and approvals. 

4. To inspect the County's on-site dredging work in a timely manner. 

5. To obligate funds to conduct the dredging work specified in Attachment I. 

6. To indemnify and hold harmless any party sustaining damage or loss resulting from the 

negligence of the Town with respect to the Town's performance of its obligations under 

this Agreement. No provisions in this agreement or otherwise shall be construed as a 



waiver of the limitations on the Town's liability under the Massachusetts Tort Claims 

Act. 

BOTH BARNSTABLE COUNTY AND THE TOWN OF TRURO AGREE: 

That nothing herein shall be construed as obligating either Barnstable County or the Town of 

Truro to expend funds or to be obligated to spend funds beyond the scope of this contract. 

This AGREEMENT may only be modified in the form of amendments in writing by mutual 

agreement by both parties. Request for modification will be forwarded to one party by the other 

party by written notice. 

ARTICLE IL TERM OF AGREEMENT 

This AGREEMENT shall be effective when signed by all parties and shall remain in effect until 

the dredging identified in Attachment I is completed to the mutual satisfaction of all parties. 

ARTICLE III. PAYMENT TO COUNTY: 

The cost of the project shall be based on a per cubic yard basis and calculated on the total cubic 

yards of material moved, using standard engineerinb practices, except as spec~Ec:' 'n Article 

VIII, and the mobilization and demobilization costs. The cost per cubic yard is $9.00. The 

Town shall be billed, and the County shall be paid for the following services: 

Mobilization costs for project is 0% of total cost 

100% movement/placement of dredge materials; 

Demobilization costs for the project is 0% of total cost 

The Town shall submit payment within 30 days of date of invoice to the County. Failure to pay 

said invoice within 30 days will result in the assessment of a late fee in the amount of 1%per 

month (12%annually) on the unpaid balance remaining after the 30th day. Said late fee will be 

assessed daily 0.033%. Failure to pay invoice within 90 days may result in legal action. The 

Town shall be responsible for all legal costs incurred by the County in collection of unpaid debts. 

ARTICLE N. WEATHER CONDITIONS 

In the event of temporary suspension of work due to inclement weather conditions, the County 

shall cease work with no adverse consequences to the County. The decision to cease work shall 

be made by the County in consultation with the Town. 



ARTICLE V. CHANGES IN WORK 

No changes in the work covered by this Agreement shall be made without having prior written 
approval of both the Town and County. Costs for additional cubic yardage shall be determined 
utilizing the costs identified in Article III. 

ARTICLE VI. COUNTY INSURANCE 

The County shall maintain the following insurance coverage while conducting the dredge 
project: 

1. Compensation insurance. The County shall maintain during the life of this Agreement 
Workmen's Compensation Insurance as required by applicable state law. 

2. Protection and Indemnity insurance. 

3. General liability and excess liability insurance. 

4. Pollution insurance. 

5. Contingent watercraft liability insurance. 

ARTICLE VII. INDEMNIFICATION 

To the extent permitted by law, Barnstable County agrees to defend, indemnify, defend 

and hold harmless the Town of Falmouth from any claims, demands, suits or judgments by third 

parties which may arise out of the negligent activities of Barnstable County or its employees 

while performing its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing in the previous sentence shall be 

construed as a waiver of the limitations on the County's liability under the Massachusetts Tort 

Claims Act or under other provisions of this Agreement. 

To the extent permitted by law, the Town of Truro agrees to defend, indemnify, defend 

and hold harmless Barnstable County from any claims, demands, suits or judgments by third 

parties which may arise out of the negligent activities of the Town of Truro or its employees 

while performing its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing in the previous sentence shall be 

construed as a waiver of the limitations on the Town's liability under the Massachusetts Tort 

Claims Act or under other provisions of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VIII TERMINATION 

This Agreement may only be terminated after written mutual agreement to do so by both parties. 

The Town shall pay the County all costs incurred by the County to the date of termination, 

including staff time, review of documents and any other costs associated with the project up to 



said termination. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the TOWN and the COUNTY execute this Agreement this 

 day of ,  2019. 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS: 

onald Beaty 

~~ 
Mary Pat Flynn 

Date 

TOWN OF TRURO: 

Date ~ ~ — `~ 



20190306 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8f 
 

Authorizing the execution of a Subaward Agreement with the Center for Coastal 
Studies in the amount of $288,200.00 through June 30, 2021 for the Seafloor 
Mapping Program 

  



SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

Barnstable County through 
Cape Cod Cooperative Extension 

3195 Main Street 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

and 

Center for Coastal Studies 
5 Holway Avenue 

Provincetown, MA 02657 

Subaward Start Date: Date of Execution 
Subaward Amount: $288,200 
Subrecipient Match: $0 
Subrecipient DUNS: 
Subaward Expiration Date: June 30, 2021 

Extension Project Contacts: 
Michael Maguire, Director 
mmaquire(c~barnstablecounty.orq
(508) 375-6701 

Shannon Jarbeau, Floodplain Specialist 
Shannon.jarbeau ?ta,barnstablecounty.orq 
(508) 375-6952 

Subrecipient Project Contacts: 
Mark Borrelli, Director, Seafloor 

Mapping Program 
mborrelli(a,coastalstudies.org 
508-487-3623 x117 

Steve Mague, Cartographer, Seafloor 
Mapping Program 

smaque(a,coastalstudies.org 



THIS SUBAWARD AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is being entered into by and between the Center for Coastal Studies (the 
"Subrecipient"), and Ronald Bergstrom, Mary Pat Flynn, and Ronald Beaty and as they are the Commissioners of Barnstable 
County, acting by and through the Cape Cod Cooperative Extension ("the Extension") so that the Subrecipient may participate 
in a project titled 'Mapping Storm Tide Pathways' (the "Project".) 

1. Background and Prime Award. The Extension and the Seaport Economic Council (hereafter `SEC') entered into Grant 
Agreement #2837 (hereafter referred to as Prime Award) to fund the Project. Under the terms of this Agreement, the Extension 
awards funds to the Subrecipient for its participation in the Project. Although funds to be provided to the Subrecipient under this 
Agreement will come ultimately from SEC, Subrecipient acknowledges that SEC is not a Party to this Agreement and has no 
obligations directly to Subrecipient under this Agreement. Notwithstanding the above, Subrecipient will be subject to and will 
comply with the terms and conditions contained in the Prime Award which are applicable to the Subrecipient, which are attached 
hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein by reference. 

2. Scope of ServiceslBudget. The Subrecipient will perform the scope of services for a maximum subaward of $288,200 as set 
forth in Attachment A. 

3. Disbursements and Accounting. The Subrecipient will separately account for expenditures made and payments received 
under this Subaward in its accounting records. The Extension will not be obligated to pay Subrecipient for any costs not detailed 
in Attachment A and will be under no obligation to disburse funds to the Subrecipient under the Agreement, except to the extent 
that funds are disbursed to the Extension under the Prime Award. Disbursements will be made to Subrecipient on a 
reimbursement basis no more frequently than monthly, based upon receipt of a complete and accurate Financial Report for the 
applicable period. Payments will be sent to Subrecipient via check. 

4. Administration: The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the Prime Award Terms and Conditions detailed in Attachment B and 
with 2 CFR 200 Uniform Guidance. 

5. Reporting 
Performance/Progress Reports —deliverables per Attachment A/final report due at Project conclusion 
Financial Reports — A final financial report is due by June 30 each year during the Project duration 

6. Termination or Suspension of Agreement for Cause. If through any sufficient cause, the Subrecipient or the Extension fails 
to fulfill or perform its duties and obligations under this Agreement, or if either party violates or breaches any of the provisions 
of this Agreement, either party will thereupon have the right to terminate or suspend this Agreement, by giving written notice to 
the other party of such termination or suspension and specifying the effective date thereof. Such notice will be given at least 
fifteen (15) calendar days before such effective date. 

7. Termination for Convenience of Extension. The Extension will have the right to discontinue the work of the Subrecipient and 
cancel this Agreement by written notice to the Subrecipient of such termination and specifying the effective date of such 
termination. In the event of such termination or suspension of this Agreement, the Subrecipient will be entitled to just and 
equitable compensation for satisfactory work completed, for services performed and for reimbursable expenses necessarily 
incurred in the performance of this Agreement up to and including the date of termination or suspension. 

8. Recordkeeping, Audit, and Inspection of Records. The Subrecipient agrees to maintain books, records, documents and other 
evidence pertaining to all costs and expenses incurred and revenues acquired under this Subaward (collectively "Records") to 
the extent and in such detail as will properly reflect all costs and expenses for which reimbursement is claimed. The Records 
will be maintained in accordance with 2 CFR 200.333. As may be requested, the Subrecipient will provide timely and unrestricted 
access to its books and accounts, files and other Records with respect to the Project for inspection, review and audit by the 
Extension, SEC, and their authorized representatives. Upon inspection, review or audit, if the Extension or SEC disallows any 
costs claimed by the Subrecipient related to this Agreement, the Subrecipient will be responsible for reimbursing the Extension 
for any of those costs. 



If the Subrecipient has a single audit performed in accordance with Uniform Guidance, the Awardee must electronically submit 
(within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor's report, or nine months after the end of the audit period) to the 
Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) the data collection form and the reporting package. The collection form must be obtained 
from the FAC webpage. The reporting package must include the Financial Statements and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
awards, the summary schedule of prior audit findings, the auditors reports and a corrective action plan. If the Subrecipient does 
not submit the form and package within the required timeframe, the Extension may perform additional monitoring of the award. 

9. Title to and Use of Work Products and Data. Except to the extent otherwise provided in the Prime Award, title to any and all 
work product, including but not limited to reports, samples of any kind, studies, photographs, drawings, calculations, designs, 
diagrams, maps, surveys, data, database records, computer programs, and any other items created, produced, or developed by 
the Subrecipient using Subaward Funds, whether or not such work product constitutes intellectual property (collectively, along 
with all supporting data and material, the "Work Product") will vest in the Subrecipient, but will be publicly available. The 
Subrecipient hereby grants to the Extension and to SEC an irrevocable, non-exclusive, royalty-free, perpetual license to use, 
reuse, print, reprint, publish, republish, reproduce, or otherwise disseminate, sublicense or distribute all or any portion of the 
Work Product as the Extension or SEC may deem appropriate from time to time in furthering their missions. Neither the 
Extension nor SEC will be required to notify the Subrecipient or obtain any form of permission or consent to use the Work 
Product in accordance with this section. The Subrecipient will provide the Extension with complete copies of the Work Product. 
Upon request by the Extension, the Subrecipient will provide SEC with complete copies of the Work Product. 

10. Announcements and Acknowledgments. All public announcements or news stories concerning the Project will be subject to 
the prior approval of the Extension and will indicate the participation of the Extension and SEC in the funding of the Project. 

11. Liability and Indemnification. The work done by or for the Subrecipient under this Agreement will be performed entirely at 
the risk of Subrecipient. The Subrecipient will be solely responsible for the payment of any and all claims with respect to, any 
loss, personal injury, death, property damage, or otherwise, arising out of any act or omission of its employees or agents in 
connection with the performance of its work, and Subrecipient will indemnify and defend the Extension and SEC, and each of 
its officers, directors, employees, and agents (in each case, an "Indemnified Party") against, and shall hold each Indemnified 
Party harmless of and from, any and all claims, liabilities, losses, costs, damages, and other expenses of any kind or nature 
whatsoever (including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees and expenses, as well as costs of suit, which any Indemnified Parry 
may incur as a result of or in connection with the Project, or which may cause the Extension to be in default under the Prime 
Award 

12. Choice of Law. This Agreement will be construed under and governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 
The Subrecipient and the agents thereof, agree to bring any federal or state legal proceedings arising under this Agreement, in 
which the Extension is a party, in a court of competent jurisdiction within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. This paragraph 
will not be construed to limit any rights a party may have to intervene in any action, wherever pending, in which the other is a 
party. 

13. Force Majeure. Neither party will be liable to the other nor be deemed to be in breach of this Agreement for failure or delay 
in rendering performance arising out of causes factually beyond its control and without its fault or negligence. Such causes may 
include, but are not limited to: acts of God or the public enemy, wars, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, or unusually severe 
weather. Dates or times of performance will be extended to the extent of delays excused by this section, provided that the party 
whose performance is affected notifies the other promptly of the existence and nature of such delay. 

14. Compliance with Laws. The Subrecipient will promptly comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, orders 
and requirements of the Commonwealth and any state or federal governmental authority relating to the delivery of the services 
described in this Agreement. 

15. Headings, Interpretation and Severability. The headings used herein are for reference and convenience only and will not be 
a factor in the interpretation of the Agreement. If any provision of this Agreement is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable, 



or void, then both parties will be relieved of all obligations under that provision. The remainder of the Agreement will be enforced 
to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Extension and Subrecipient have executed this Agreement this 
in the year two thousand and nineteen. 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: FORT ' E •UBRECIPI 

Ronald Bergstrom, Chair 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair 

Ronald Beaty, Commissioner 

Date 

FOR THE EXTENSION: 

1ichael Maguire, Execu ~ e Director 

3 -cam-15 
Date 

Date 
2/L~ /~9 
t ~ 

day of 



SCOPE OF WORK 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

The Cape Cod Cooperative Extension, in partnership with the Center for Coastal Studies, will 

enable the protection of coastal businesses, homes, property and infrastructure by precisely 

identifying and mapping "storm tide pathways," the lowest elevation where water will begin to 

flow inland during a flood event. This project will provide field-verified data on where, when, 

and how storm surge and floodwaters approach and then inundate coastal communities. The 

information will help municipalities identify critical locations where action is necessary to 

minimize or eliminate coastal flooding, providing acost-effective means to protect their 

communities from the significant damage and economic loss associated with storm surge and sea 

level rise. 

As the winter of 2017-2018 illustrated —beginning with arecord-breaking storm surge on 

January 4th and culminating in four destructive nor'easters in March —Massachusetts' seaside 

communities must be focused on coastal resiliency to ensure continued viability of their 

maritime economies. Management challenges are becoming acute as current climate conditions 

appear to be producing more frequent, high intensity storms that result in significant flooding, 

causing damage to infrastructure and disrupting commercial activities that sustain local coastal 

communities. In addition to storm activity, "nuisance flooding" driven by sea level rise has 

begun to appear in some coastal areas along Cape Cod Bay (most notably Sandwich and 

Barnstable), where spring high tides, typically occurring several days per month, are already 

encroaching into areas not previously observed. 

Coastal managers are charged with ensuring, to the best of their ability, a stable physical 

environment within which businesses can thrive and grow. Flood damage to residential and 

commercial properties and infrastructure —and any subsequent loss of business, tourism, 

property value, or tax income —can result in millions of dollars in economic losses with awide-

ranging, long-lasting impact. Retail Trade, along with Accommodation and Food Services 

account for 32.9% of Barnstable County's economy in terms of total employment. t Tourism and 

recreation make up 95% of Cape Cod's Total Ocean Economy, providing over $372 million in 

wagesZ while properties in floodplains along Cape Cod Bay have a total value in excess of $2 

billion. In order to maintain this critical economic sector, shoreline infrastructure, access to 

beaches, and the coastal businesses that support that industry must be protected. 

Consequently, it is incumbent upon the Commonwealth's policy- and decision-makers to 

implement maritime programs and projects that mitigate risk through smart, long-term planning 

practices. The critical first step in this vetting process is employing innovative and 

t U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. (2016). Jobs &Wages (BLS) for Barnstable County, MA. StatsAmerica. Available 
online at http://www.statsamerica.org/USCP/default.aspx?geo id=25001. 
z National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration. (2014). Data for Barnstable County. Economics: National 
Ocean Watch dataset. Available online at https://coast.noaa.gov/digitalcoast/tools/enow.html.



implementable tools that help officials pinpoint the most critical coastal vulnerabilities in their 

communities and in doing so, enable them to pursue strategies to address and reduce the impacts 

of those vulnerabilities. 

This project will map existing storm tide pathways3 using the latest, Cape-wide, high-resolution 

elevation data (lidar); advanced spatial analysis and data visualization software; and science-

grade, Real-Time-Kinematic GPS (RTK-GPS) positional data collected in the field by an 

experienced field team of surveyors and scientists. While maps exist of the predicted extent of 

current and future flood risk, the pathways that floodwaters take to reach those extents are 

currently unidentified. Between 2015 and 2017, the Center for Coastal Studies (CCS) mapped 

storm tide pathways for the towns of Provincetown, Nantucket, and Truro using methodology 

developed in the context of three grants funded by the Massachusetts Office of Coastal Zone 

Management's (CZM) Coastal Resiliency Grant Program. This project will build on that 

methodology, resulting in clear, concise and straightforward maps of the precise locations of all 

storm tide pathways for the Cape Cod Bay shorelines of Sandwich, Barnstable, Yarmouth, 

Dennis, Brewster, Orleans, Eastham, Wellfleet, Truro, and Provincetown. This methodology can 

be replicated for other parts of the Massachusetts coast as well. 

As part of the 2016-2017 CZM Resiliency Grant CCS worked with the National Weather Service 

(NWS) to develop real-time, Internet-based maps (Figures 1 and 2) that combined NWS's storm 

surge predictions with the accurate locations of storm tide pathways. Based on the lessons 

learned from this project, the maps of pathways and supporting GIS data will be accessible on 

personal computers and handheld devices through aweb-based application developed for each 

community. When combined with information provided by the NWS's Storm Surge Forecasting 

website, real-time USGS tide elevations at Provincetown and Sesuit Harbors, and newly installed 

datum-referenced tide staffs, for this project, in Sandwich, Barnstable, Eastham and Wellfleet 

these maps will provide invaluable resources for pre- and post-storm planning. Recognizing the 

heightened interest in this type of information prior to storm events by managers, recreational 

and commercial boaters, marina operators, and local businesses and industries, this online 

product will be modified to provide each community and the public with direct access to town-

specific data, as opposed to being hosted solely on the NWS website, 

(~`~z~v.weather.gov/box/coastal). This will allow users to implement protective measures 

proactively in anticipation of storm tide pathway activation or overtopping. 

The utility of these projects was demonstrated when the information was used to prepare for 

coastal storm flooding during the January and March storms of 2018 (Figures 3 and 4), where 

identified storm tide pathways were closed to floodwaters through short-term flood-protection 

s A storm tide pathway is the mapped location where water will begin to flow inland during a flood event. In 

addition, the precise elevation at which water will begin to flow over that pathway is also determined in the field 

using high accuracy GPS instruments. Both the location and elevation of each pathway are then incorporated into a 

database that is linked to interactive maps stored in a GIS database. 



measures. This response significantly minimized short-teliu damage, allowing commercial hubs 

such as Provincetown to quickly return to normal operations after the storms. Significantly, this 

same information is now being used to support longer-term solutions that will increase 

community awareness and coastal resiliency. 

Mapping storm tide pathways will provide added value for several related projects. The data can 

be used to inform local Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plans, plans communities develop consistent 

with the State Hazard Mitigation Plan to identify actions to reduce or eliminate loss of life and 

property from natural hazards. The resultant GIS data can be used in the Cape Cod 

Commission's National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration-funded Resilient Cape Cod 

project, creating tools for towns to use to make decisions about resiliency. Emergency Managers 

and first responders can benefit from the data, knowing where roads will be under water and 

finding alternative access routes. Finally, towns in the Community Rating System can earn 

additional credit for data that will be developed as well as planning that can be pursued with the 

new data. 

This project will provide communities with maps of the routes that floodwaters take as well as a 

web-based product that combines existing storm related information into one application These 

products will allow towns to implement short-term flood response during storm events (such as 

where and when to deploy sand bags or temporary flood walls), as well as provide information 

that can be used to develop and implement a plan that prioritizes infrastructure improvements 

with a goal of increasing community and coastal economic resiliency. 

Project Success 

The fundamental measure of success will be the development and delivery, to each town, of the 

GIS-based maps and spatial data, installation of up to four tide staffs and development of a web-

based application that combines existing NWS storm tide predictions and links to existing tide 

stations at Sesuit and Provincetown Harbors in Cape Cod Bay. The final product will include a 

web-based GIS application that will be accessible on personal computers and handheld devices 

via the Internet for the Cape Cod Bay shorelines of Sandwich, Barnstable, Yarmouth, Dennis, 

Brewster, Orleans, Eastham, Wellfleet, Truro, and Provincetown. The work done for the pilot 

projects in Truro and Provincetown will be updated to reflect upgrades to the pilot project 

methodology and integrated with the new mapping of the other eight Cape Cod Bay towns 

resulting in up-to-date storm tide pathway maps of the ten Cape Cod Bay towns at the 

completion of the 2-year project. 



NWS Boston -Coastal Flood Threat and Inundation Mapping 
.v«amnrgor > 9cs:w MA > NWS Boslon -Coastal Flood Threat and Inundation Mapping 

Coastal Ovedays 

Coastal Sludges 

r t

- Le2'le? I Map tlata 6' CoerSrve?ia'.~p contnbutars, CC F3'! c.\, Imagery ~ ht,v~o g. 

Boston, MA 

Forecast Issuatl-
NA 

High Tide Cycle 

SIh 6[n 6th ][h 7th Bth ath 
PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

-Inundation Oveday -
Total Water Level Height 

(ft MLLW) 

!7 

Fig. 1. Screenshot of STP locations on National Weather Service (NWS) site for Provincetown and Truro 

NWS Boston -Coastal Flood Threat and Inundation Mapping 
~. ea ~_ ~e~ > P.r~'~^. t'a> NWS Boston -Coastal Fiootl Threal and Inuntlahon Mapping 

Pro ~+=un.m 
M:gl. s.h:~:-. 

cE ~t 

O 

0~¢

r 

HtGK PO:F HI::_ h~ 

Pathway ID: l t-06 
tatMg: 42.051. -70.188 

ElevaUcn (N1LLWj: 13.67 tt 
ElevaAon (NAND 88;:8.15 ft
Be:ow flood of record by: 1.82 ft MLLW 

Pmvincetovm Horbo 
Forecast Pdrtt Ong 

Gaye Location 
Observaliore d Forecast 

Flooding Categadaa: 

Minn 

Moderate 
K~o-i•s 

Le_t =_tIMaP Cata'C Upi~n~Fcc::'d ~; cort'butors. ::C-Fv-~A,Imagory C~"A:~{,to 

Boston, MA 

Forecast lssueC 

NA 

High Tide Cyele 

Sty 6t~ 6tn 7tn 7:n eth atn 
PM AM PM AM PM AM PM 

- Inundation Overlay -
Total Water Level Height 

(ft MLLW) 

16 

Fig. 2. Screenshot of STP locations and inundation extents on National Weather Service site. 



Fig. 3. Example of storm tide pathways using data visztialization software developed for the 2015-2016 MCZM 

Coastal Resiliency grant program in Provincetown. As water levels reach the elevation of the STPs areas 

landward become flooded. During the January 4 h̀ storm water flowed over STPs 11-06 and I1-07. During 

scabsequent 2018 storms the town took actions to stop inundation based on the STP data. 

Fig. 4. Still frame of video of flooding at STP #I1-07 (from Fig 1.). Saltwater from Provincetown Harbor flowing 

across Commercial Street on January 4 h̀, 2018. Video was taken ~I.S-2 hours before high tide. Signif cant 
flooding occurred and many buildings, both public and private were flooded with salt water in Provincetown. 



BUDGET AND SOURCES 

Source Total Secured/Pending Additional Details 

Seaport Economic 

Council 
$317,020 

Secured Grant 

Award 

Funding from the Massachusetts Seaport Economic 

Council 

Barnstable County $25,000 Secured 

In-kind match; Cape Cod Cooperative Extension 

(Community Rating System & Floodplain Coordinator, 

technical assistance and project oversight for an average 

of 5 hours/week) 

Barnstable County $15,000 Secured 

In-kind match; Health Department/Regional Emergency 

Planning Committee (Emergency Preparedness Project 

Specialist, technical assistance and project oversight for 

an average of 2 hours/week) 

Municipalities $20,000 Secured In-kind match; support from multiple communities 

University of 

Massachusetts, 

Boston 

$5,000 Secured 

In-kind match; will be used to partially support creation 

of web-based application for pathway maps 

Total Budget $382,020 

DETAILED BUDGET (Funded by Seaport Economic Council) 

Est. Cost Major Project Activity 

• $19,775 Development of storm tide profiles for towns 

• $53,450 Computer-based mapping of all potential Storm Tide Pathways (STP) 

• $24,395 Install water level (tide) recorders to correlate storm tide profiles 

(NAVD88) to local tidal datums (MLLW) 

• $77,850 Field verification and survey of potential STPs and 

identification of new STPs not apparent in lidar 

• $22,375 Development of Preliminary STP data layers and maps (Digital) 

• $37,875 Development of online/app of map-based STP data for each town 

• $19,700 Final STP maps and related digital data and on-line/app for each town 

• $32,780 Final town-specific reports describing GIS data, observations, and 

recommendations 

• $28,820 Barnstable County grant administration 



TIMELINE AND DELIVERABLES 

1) Development of storm tide profiles for towns 
$19,775 Early Spring 2019 

2) Computer-based mapping of all potential Storm Tide Pathways 

(STP) 
$53,450 Spring 2019 

3) Install water level (tide) recorders to correlate storm tide 

profiles (NAVD88) to local tidal datums (MLLW) 

$24,395 Summer 2019 

4) Field verification and survey of potential Storm Tide Pathways 
(STPs) and identification of new STPs not apparent in lidar 

$77,850 Winter 2019-20 

5) Development of Preliminary STP data layers and maps 

(Digital) 
$22,375 Spring 2020 

6) Development of online/app of map-based STP data for each 

town 

$37,875 Summer 2020 

7) Final STP maps and related digital data and on-line/app for 

each town 
$19,700 Spring 2021 

8) Final town-specific reports describing GIS data, observations, 

and recommendations 
$32,780 Spring 2021 

9) Barnstable County grant administration 
$28,820 Winter 2019 —Spring 2021 

10) *Barnstable County Cape Cod Cooperative Extension in-kind 

match (technical assistance and project oversight) 
$25,000 Winter 2019 —Spring 2021 

11) *Barnstable County Regional Emergency Planning Committee 

in-kind match (technical assistance and project oversight) 
$15,000 Winter 2019 —Spring 2021 

12) *Municipalities in-kind match (support from multiple 

communities) 
$20,000 Winter 2019 —Spring 2021 

13) *University of Massachusetts, Boston in-kind match (support 

creation of web-based app for maps) 
$5,000 Winter 2019 —Spring 2021 

TOTAL $382,020 

*Indicates 20% match 

Milestones: 

Milestone 

■ - Work Start Date 

■ 1) Storm tide profiles for towns 

■ 2) Computer-based mapping STP 

■ 3) Install water level recorders 

■ 4) Field verification of (STPs) 

■ 5) Prelim. STP data 

■ 6) Prelim. online/app STPs 
■ 7) Final STP maps 

■ 8) Final Report 

■ -Contract Expiration Date 

Timeframe 

February 2019 

Spring 2019 

Spring 2019 

Summer 2019 

Winter 2019-20 

Spring 2020 

Summer 2020 
Early Spring 2021 

Early Spring 2021 

March 2021 

25% complete 

50% complete 

75% complete 

100% complete 



Drawdown Schedule: 

The drawdown schedule is a quarterly breakdown of the project's future spending projections. 

Please speak with your contractor to have the most up-to-date and accurate information. 

EOHED will be using the projection you py-ovide to ensure that the project remains on time and 

on budget. Do not limit yourself to these rows if additional months are needed. 

Quarter/Year Invoice A~rrouut 

[ 1ST/2019] 
[2ND/2019] 

[3RD/2019] 
[4TH/2019] 

[ 1ST/2020] 
[2ND/2020] 

[3RD/2020] 
[4TH/2020] 

[MAR/2021] Final 

Invoice Retainage 
~5%~~ 

$ 79,255.00 
$ 27,739.25 
$ 27,739.25 
$ 27,739.25 
$ 27,739.25 
$ 27,739.25 
$ 27,739.25 
$ 27,739.25 
$ 27,739.25 

$ 15.851.00 

25% of total project 

1/8 of budget after first 

1 /8 of budget after first 

1 /8 of budget after first 

1 /8 of budget after first 

1/8 of budget after first 

1/8 of budget after first 

1/8 of budget after first 

1/8 of budget after first 

quarter +retainage 

quarter +retainage 

quarter +retainage 

quarter +retainage 

quarter +retainage 

quarter +retainage 

quarter +retainage 

quarter +retainage 

*EOHED will set aside 5% of the total grant award as retainage until the project (or the portion of the project 

completed with grant funds) is demonstrated to be complete. The S%will be deducted from the final invoice and will 

be paid promptly upon demonstration that the project has been completed. 



ATTACHMENT B 
AWARD CONTRACT: BARNSTABLE COUNTY AND SEAPORT ECONOMIC COUNCIL 



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS ~ STANDARD CONTRACT FORM 
This form is join9y Issued and published by the Executive 03fx:e far Administraton and Finance (ANFl, Ota Oftce of the Comptroger 1CTR) and the Services \~ ~~ 
Divisiao 4OSD) as the default contract for all CommomveaOh Departments when another form is not prescribed by regtdation or policy. Any changes to the official patted 
language of this form shall be void. Additional non-con0icfing terms may be added by Attachment. Contractors may not require any additional agreements, engagement letters, conirad 
forms or other additional terms as part of this Contract without prior DepaAment approval. Click on hyperGnks for defini0ons, UtsVuctions and legal requirements that are incorporated by 
reference into This Contract. An elecVonic copy of this form is available at www mass.oavlcsc under Guidance Far Venders -Forms or www.mass.gcv/asd under OSD Forms. 

CONTRACTOR LEGAL NAME:: County of Barnstable COMMONWEALTH DEPARTMENT NAME: Executive Office of Housing and Economic 

(and dlbfa): Development 
MMARS Department Code: EED 

Legal Address: (W9, W-4,T&C): 3225 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02639 Business Maiilnq Address: One Ashburton Place, Room 2101, Boston, MA 02108 

Contract Manager: Michael Maguire 8itling Address (if different): same as 

E•Maii: mrnaguire~barnstablecounty.org Contract Manager: Robin Pezzone 

Phone: (508}375.5101 iFax: E•Matl: robitl.pezzone[atstate.ma.us 

Contractor Vendor Code: VCfi000194979 Phone: 617.780.3621 i Fax:617-788.3fi05 

Vendor Code Address ID {e.g. "AD001"}: AD001:
for EFT payments,) 

MMARS Doc ID(s1: 
(Note: The Address Id Musf be set up RFRfProcurement orOther ID Number:Award Round 2018 

X NEW CONTRACT CONTRACT AMENDMENT 

PROCUREMENT OR EXCEPTION TYPE: (Check one option only) Enter Current Contract End Dafe ~P lorto Amendment: _, 20_ 

Statewide Contract (OSD or an OSD-designated Department) 
approval, scope, budget) 

State or Federal grants 815 CMR 2.00) 

EnterAmendment Amount: 8 . (or "ne change") 

_Collective Purchase (Attach OSb AMENDMENT TYPE: (Check one option only. Attach details of Amendment changes.) 
X Department Procurement (includes Amendment to Scope or Budget (Attach updated scope and budget? 

{Attach RFR and Response or other 
_Emergency Contract (Attach jusOficationior 

procurement supporting documentation) 
emergency, scope, budget) 

Status Four scope, budget) 

interim Contract (Attach Justificalion for Interim Contract and updated scopelbudget} 

Contract Employee (Attach any updates to scope or budget) Employee (Attach Employment _Contract 
LegislativelLegal orOther. (Attach authorizing IanguagefjusOfica0on, scepeand Legislativeflegal orOther: (Attach authorizing IanguagefjusOficaOonand updaled 

budget) scope and budget! 
The following COMMONWEALTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS (T8C}has been executed, ailed with CTR and is incorporated by reference into this Contract. 

Human and Social Services X Commonwealth Torms and Conditions Commonwealth Terms and Conditons For 

COMPENSATION: (Check ONE option): The Department certifies that payments for authorized performance accepted in accordance with the terms of This Contract tivll be supported 
appropriations or other nenappropriated funds, subJect to intercept for Commonwealth owed debts under 815 Ctv1R 9.00. 

Attach details of all rates, units, calculations, conditions or terms and any changes if rates or terms are being amended.) 

Total Maximum Obfga0on for total duration of this Contracl(rr nawTotat if Coniractls being amended}. 3 317.020 

in the stale acwunting system by suffiaent 
Rate Contract (No Maximum Obligation. 

X Maximum Obligation Contract Enter 

PROMPT PAYMENT DISCOUNTS (PPD►: Commonwealth payments are issued through EFT 45 days from invoice receipt Contractors requesOng accelerated payments must 
15 ddays ~ %PPD; Payment issued within 20 days _ °k PPD; Payment issued within 30 
45 day cycle ~ stakdotyllegal or Ready Payments fG.L. c. 29. § 23A}; X onty initial 

identify a PPD as foOows: Payment issued within t0 days _%PPD; Payment issued within 
days _%PPD. t! PPD percentages are left blank, identify reason: X_agree to standard 
payment (subsequent payments scheduled to support standard EFT 45 day payment cycle. See Prompt Pav Discounts Policy.) 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT PERFORMANCE or REASON FOR AMENDMENT: (Enter the Cortraci title, purpose, fiscal years) and a detailed descdp0on of the scope of 
performance or what is being amended for a Contact Amendment. Attach alt supporting documentation and justifications.} Seaport Economic Council grant funding for the 

Mapping Stormtide Pathways project 

ANTICIPATED START DATE: (Complete ONE option only) The Department and Contractor certify for this Contract, or ConUact Amendment, that Contract obligations: 

Date Qatest signature date below) and no obligations have been incurred prior to the Effective Uaie. x 1. may be incurred as of the Effective 
2. may be incurred as of , 20_, a date LATER than the Effective Dale below and no obligations have been incurred prior to the Effective Date. _ 

were incurred as of , 20_ , a date PRIOR to the Effective Date below, and the parties agree that payments for any ob5ga0ons Vtcurred prior to the E4lactive Date are _3. 
authorized to be made either as settlement payments or as authodzed reimbursement payments, and that the details and circumstances of all obligations under this Contract are 
attached and incorporated into th'ss Contract. Acceptance of payments forever releases the Commonwealth from further claims related to these obligations. 

CONTRACT END DATE: Contract performance shall terminate as of June 39 , 2021 ,with no new obligations being incurred after Otis date unless the Cankact is property 
amended, provided that the terms of this Contract and perfornance expectations and obligations shall survive its termination for the purpose of resolving any claim or dispute, for 
completing arty negotiated terms and warranties, to allow any close out or transition performarsce, reporting, invoiang or final payments, or dudng any lapse between amendments. 

CERTIFICATIONS: NotwOhhstanding verbal or other representations by the parties, the °Effective Date" of this Contractor Amendment shalt be the latest date Otat this Contract or 
an authorized signatory of the Contractor, the Department, or a later Cattract or Amendment Start Dale specified above, subject to any requ'ued 

certifications required under the attached Contractcr Certificabons (incorporated by reference ii not attached hereto) under the pains and 
Amendment has been executed by 
approvals. The CanUactor makes all 
penalties of perjury, agrees to provide 
business in Massachusetts are a#ached 
Conditions, this Standard Contract Form 

any required documentation upon request to support 
or incorporated by reference here•;n according 
including Ste InsLtictions and Contractor CeN5catians, 

campiiance, and agrees that all terms governing performance of this Contract and doing 
to the following hierarchy of document precedence, the applicable Commonwealth Terms and 

the Reques#for Response (RFR) or other solicitation, the Contractor's Response, and 
additional negotiated terms, provided 
process ou0ined in 891 CMR 21.9?, 

that additional nego0ated terms wilt take precedence 
ncorporated herein, provided Otat any amended RFR 

NE CO ACT '~ 

over the relevant terms in the RFR and the Contractor's Response only if made using the 
or Response terms result to best value, lower costs, or a mere cost effective ConUact. 

AUTHORIZING 51GNATURE FOR THE COMMONWEALTH: UTHORIZ G GHAT E OR 
i 

~c . pa e: X: ,Date: 
{SlghBture and D ust 

Print Name:'&sp,r3 rt~y 

,~ 
a 

~{,a~
p

l
dwritfen At Time of Si

Q
gn lure) 

KaT ~}~slyl~r^F3.~ C7~~~~m 
(Signature and Date Must Be Handwritten At 71me of Signature) 

Print Name: , } 
Print TIBe: ~ot~n ft1s~a or~~S Print Title: 

(Issued 8127!2011} Page i.of 5. 



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS °-STANDARD CONTRACT FORM 

INSTRUCTIONS AND CONTRACTOR CERTIF[CATiONS 
The fo':lowing instructions and terms are incorporated by reference and apply to this 
Standard ConUact Farm. Text that appears underlined indicates a "hyperlink" to an Internet 
or bookmarked site and are unofficial versions of these documents and DepatUnants and 
Contrac#ors shoutd cansutt with their legal counsel to ensure compliance wigs an legal 
requirements. Using the Web Toolbar ►viii make navigation between the form and the 
hypertinks easier. Please note that not af[ applicabte laws have been cited. 

CDNTRACTDR LEGAL NAME (AND DtB1A): Enter the Ful[ Legal Name ai the 
Contractor's business as it appears on the ConUactor's Vu''-9 or W-4 Farm (Contract 
Employees only) and the applicabte Commonwealth Terms and Conditions If Contractor 
also has a "doing business as" (dPo1a) name, BOTH the legal name and Ute "dtbia" name 
must appear in this section. 
Centractor legal Address: Enter the Legal Address of the Contractor as it appears on 
the Conracto>'s W-9 or W-4 Form (Contract Employees only) and the app5cable 
Cemmonwealth Terms and Conditions which must match She Legal address on the 10991 
table in PAh1ARS (or the Legal Address in HRJCMS for CanUact Employee). 
Contractor Contract h4anager: Enter the authorized Contract Manager who will be 
responsible for managing the Contract. The Contract h4anager should be ~ Authorized 
Signatory or, at a minimum, a person designated by the Contractor to represent the 
Contractor, receive lega{ notices and negotiate ongoing Contract issues. The Contract 
Manager is considered "Key Personnel' and may not be changed without the prior written 
approval of the Department. If the Contract is posted on Comm-PASS, the Contract 
Manager must be listed on the Vendor Section tab. 

Contractor E•Mail AddresslPhonelFax: Enter the electronic mail (e-mail) address, phone 
and fax number of the Contractor Contract Manager. This information must be kept current 
by the Contractor to ensure that the Departm~t can contact the Contractor and provide any 
required legal notices. Notice received by the Contract Manager (with confirmation of 
actual receipt) titrough the listed address, fax numbers) or electronic matt address vyr71 meat 
any written legal nogce requirements. 
Contractor Vendor Code: The Department must enter the MMA.RS Vendor Carla 
assigned by the Commonwealth. if a Vendor Code has not yet been assigned, leave this 
space blank and the Department will complete this section when a Vendor Code has been 
assigned. The Department is responsible under rho Vendor Fife and W-9s Policy for 
verifying wish authorized signatories of the Contractor, as part of contraclexecuGon, thatihe 
legal name, address and Federal Tax Identification Number (T!N} in the Contract 
documents match the state accounting system. 
Vendor Cade Address t0; (e.g., "AD001") The Department must enter the MfMRS 
Vendor Cade Address ld identifying ttte payment remittance address for Contract 
payments, which MUST be set up for EFT payments PRIOR io the first payment under the 
Contract in accordance with the Biil Pavino and Vendor file and W-B policies. 

COMMONWEALTH DEPARTMENT NAME: Enter the furl Department name wigs the 
authority to obligate funds encumbered for the Contract. 
Commonwealth MfdARS Alpha Department Code: Enter the three f3) letter MfAARS 
Code assigned to this Commonwealth Department in the state accounting system. 

Department Business fAailing Address: Enter the address where all format 
correspondence to the Departrttent must be soot. Unless otherwise speafied ~ the 
Contract, legal notice sent or received by the Department's Contract Manager (with 
confrmation of actual receipt) through the listed address, fax number{s} or electronic mail 
address for the Contract Manager will meet any requirements tar legal notice. 

Department Bilking Address: Enter the Bitting Address or email address if invoices must 
he sent to a different location. Billing or confirmation of delivery of performance issues 
should be resolved through the listed Contract Managers. 

Department Contract Manager; Identify the authorized Contract Manager who will be 
responsible for managing the Contract, who shoutd be an authorized signatory or an 
employee designated by the Department to represent the Department to receive legal 
notices and negotiate ongoing Contract issues. 
Department E•Mail AddressfPhonelFax: Enter the electronic mail (e-mail} address, 
phone and fax number of the Department GonUact h4anager. Unless otherwise specified in 
the Contract, legal notice sent or received by the Contract Manager (with confirmation of 
actual receipt) through the listed address, fax numbers) or electronic mail address wall meet 
any requirements for written notice under the Contract. 

tdh4ARS Document ID(s}: Enter the MMARS 20 character encumbrance Uansacgon 
number associated with th'ss Contract which must remain the same for the life of the 
Contract. If multiple numbers exist for this Contract, identify ail Doc Ids. 
RFRIProcurement or Dther ID Number or Name: Entor the Request for Response 
(RFR) or other Procurement Reference number, Contract ID Number or other 
referencelUacking number for This Contract or Amendment and wit[ be entered into the 
Board Award Field in the MMARS encumbrance transaction for this Contract. 

NEW CONTRACTS (left side of Form}: 

Complete this section ONLY if this Contract is brand new. (Complete the CONTRACT 
AMENDMENT section for any material changes to an existing or an expired Contract, 
and for exercising options to renew or annual contracts under amulti-year 
procurement or grant program.) 

PROCUREMENT OR EXCEPTION TYPE; Check the appropriate type of procurement or 
exception for this Contract. Only one option can be selected. See State Finance Law and 
Genera# Requirements, Acquisition Policy and Fixed Assets the Commodities and Sevices 
Policy and the Prxuremenf Information Center {Depar#ment Contract Guidance) for details. 

Statewide Contract (OSD or an OSD-designated Department}. Check this option for a 
Statewide Contraclunder OSD, or by an OSD-designated Departrrrent. 

ColEective Purchase approved by OSD. Check this option for Contracts approved by 
OSD tar collective purchases through federal, state, local government or other entities. 

Department Contract Procurement. Check this option for a Deparbrtenl procurement 
including state grants and federal sub-grants under 815 CMR 2.00 and Slate Grants and 
Federal Subcrants Policy. Departmental Master Agreements (MA). if multi-Department 
user Contract, identify multi-Department use is allowable in Brief Desaipfion. 
Emergency Contract. Check This option when the Department has determined that an 
unforeseen crlsis or incident has arlsen which requires or mandates immediate purchases 
to avoid subslanlial harm to the functioning of government or the provision of necessary or 
mandated services or whenever the health, welfare or safety of clients or other persons or 
serious damage to property is threatened. 
Contract Employee, Check this option when the Department requires the performance of 
an individual Contractor, and when the planned Contract performance with an Individual 
has been ciassitied using the Employment Status Form {prlor to the Contractor's selection) 
as work of a Contract Employee and not that of an Independent Contractor. 

LegislativefLegat or Other. Check this option when legislaton, an existing legal 
obligation, prohibition or other ctrcumstance exempts or prohibits a Conhact from being 
competitively procured, or identify any other procurement exception not already listed. 
Legislative °earmarks° exempt the Contract solely from procurement requirements, and all 
other ConUact and state finance laws and policies apply. Supporting documentation must 
be attached to explain and justify the exemption. 

CONTRACT AMENDfENT {Rlgttf Side of Form) 

Complete Phis section for any Contract being renewed, amended or is continue a lapsed 
Contract. Ail Contracts with available options to renew must be amended reterenGng the 
original procurement and Contract dac ids, since all continuing contracts must be 
maintained in the same Contract file (even if the underlying approprlation changes each 
fisc~ year.) "See Amendments. Suspensions. and Terrninatian Policy.) 

Enrer Current Contract End Date: Enter the Eerminafion date of the Cunent Contract 
being amended, even if this date has already passed. (Note: Current Start Date is not 
requested since this date does not rdEange and is a':ready recorded in Mh4l4RS.} 
Enter Amendment Amount: Enter the amount of the Amendment increase ar decrease to 
a Maximum Obligation Contract. Enter"na change" for Rate Contracts or if no change. 

AfENDMENT TYPE: Identify the type of Amendment being done. Documentation 
supporting the updates to performance and budget must be attached. Amendment to 
Scope or Budget. Check this option when renewing a Contract or executing any 
Amendment ("material change" in Contract terms) even if the Gontraci has lapsed, The 
parties may negotiate a change in any element of Contract performance ar lost identified in 
the RfR or the Contractor's response which results in lower cos15, or a more cost-effective 
ar better value performance than was presented in the original selected response, provided 
the negotiation results in a better value within the scope of the RFR than what was 
proposed by the Contractor in the original selected response. Any "material" change in the 
Contract terms must be memorialized in a formal Amendment even if a corresponding 
h4MAR5 transaction is no! needed to support the change. Additional negotiated terms will 
take precedence over the relevant terms in the RFR and the Contractors Response only if 
made using the process outlined in 801 CMR 21.0?, incorporated herein, provided that any 
amended RFR or Response terms result in best value, lower costs, or a more cost effective 
Contract. 

Interim Contracts. Check this option far an Interim Contract to prevent a lapse of Contract 
performance whenever an existing Contract is being re-procured but the new procurement 
has not been completed, to bridge the gap during implementation between an expiring and 
a new procurement or to conVact with an interim Contractor when a current Contractor is 
unable to complete full performance under a Contract. 
Contract Employee. Check this epton when gte Department requires a renewal or other 
amendment to the performance of a Contract Employee. 
LegislativelLegat cr Other. Check this option when legislation, an existing legal 
obligation, prohibition or other circumstance exempts or prohibits a Contract from being 
competitively prxured, or Identify any other procurement exception not already tisied. 
Legislative "eamrar4cs" exempt the Contract solely from prowremenE requirements, and all 
other Contract and state finance laws and policies apply. Attach supporting documentation 
to explain and justify the exemption and whether Contractor selection has been publicly 
posted. 

(Issued 6127/201 t) Page 2 of 5 



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS ~ STANDARD CONTRACT FORM 
COMMONWEALTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Identify which CommenweaiG-r Terms and Conditions the Contractor has executed and is 
incorporated by reference into this Contract. This Form is signed only once and recorded on 
the Vendor Customer File (VCUST). See Vendor Fife and W-9s Policy. 

COMPENSATION 

Identify if the Confiact is a Rate Contract (with no slated Maximum Obligation) or a 
Maximum Obligation Contract {wigs a stated Maximum Obligation) and identiy the 
Maximum Obligation. if the Contract is being amended, enter the new Maximum Obligahon 
based upon the increase or decreasing Amendment. The Total Maximum Obligation must 
reaed the totai funding for the dates of service under the r:onUad, inctudi~g the 
Amendment amount ff the Contract is being amended. The Maximum Obligation must 
match the MMARS encumbrance. Funding and allotments must be verified as available 
and encumbered prior to incurring obl'galions. €f a Contact includes both a Maximum 
Obligation component and Rate Contract component, check off both, specific Max'smum 
Obligation amounts or amended amounts and Attachments must clearly ouHine the 
Contract breakdown to match rho encumbrance. 

PAYPAENTS AND PROMPT PAY DISCOUNTS 

Payments are processed within a 45 day payment cycle through EFT in accordance with 
the Commonwealth Sil( Favino Palicv for invesbment and cash flow purposes. Departments 
may NOT negotiate accelerated payments and Payees are NOT entitled to accelerated 
payments UNLESS a prompt payment discount (PPD) is provided to support the 
Commonwealth's loss of investment earnings for tftis eadier payment, or unless a payments 
is legally mandated to Ira made in less than 45 days {e.g., consUuction contracts, Ready 
Payments under G.L. c. 29, s. 23A}. See Prompt Pav Discounts Pfllicy. PPD are Identified 
as a percentage discount which will be automatically deduded when an accelerated 
payment is made. Reduced contracts rates may not be negotiated to replace a PPD. i( 
PPD fields are left blank please identify That the ConUaclor agrees to the standard 45 day 
cycle; a statutoryllegal exemption such as Ready Payments (G.L. c. 29, § 23A); or only an 
initial accelerated payment for reimbursements or start up costs for a grant, wiUt 
subsequent payments sdteduled to support standard EFT 45 day payment cycle. Financial 
hardship ks not a sufficient justification to accelerate cash flow far all payments under a 
Contract. Initial grant or contract payments may tie accelerated for the first irnroice or inlUal 
grant installment, buE subsequent periodic Installments ar invoice payments should be 
scheduled to support Ute Payee cash Uow needs and the standard 45 day EFT payment 
cycle in accordance with fire Bill Paying Policy. Any accelerated payment that does not 
provide for a PPD must have a legal justification in Contract file for audit purposes 
explaining why accelerated payments were allowable without a PPD. 

The Department must enter the date that Contract performance witl terminate. If the 
Contract is being amended and the Contract End Date is not changing, this date 
must be re-entered again here. A Contract must be signed for at least Ute initial duration 
but not longer than the period of procurement listed in the RFR, or outer solicitation 
document (if applicable). No new performance is allowable beyond the end date without 
an amendment, but the Deparbment may allow a Contractor to canpiete minimal close out 
performarsce obligations ff substantial performance has been made prior to the termnation 
date of the Contract and pdor to the end of the fisca! year in which payments are 
appropriated, provided chat any close out pertonnance is subject to appropriation and 
funding limits render state finance law, and CTR may adjust encurrdrrances and payments in 
the state accounting system to enable final dose out payments. Performance dates are 
subject to G.L, e.4. § 9. 

CERTEFECATiONS AND EXECUTION 
See Department Head Signature Authorizaton Policy and the Contractor Authorized 
Signatory Listina  for policies on Contractor and Department signatures. 
Authorizing Signature far CantractortDate: The Authorized ConUacfor Signatory must (n 
their awn handwrding and in ink) sign AND enter the date the Contract is signed. See 
section above under "A.nficipated Contract Start Date'. Acceptance of payment by the 
Contractor shall waive any right of the Contractor to claim the ConUacUAmendment is not 
valid and the Contractor may not void the Contract. Rubber stamps, typed or other 
images are not acceptable. Proof of Contractor signature authorization on a Contractor 
Authorized Signatory Listing  may tie required by the Departrnent if not already on file. 

Contractor Name (Title: The Contractor Authorized Sign~ory's name and ti tle must 
appear legibly as it appears en the Contractor Authorized Signatory Listing. 

Authorizing Signature For CommcnwealthlDate: The Authorized Department Signatory 
must (in their awn handwriting and in ink) sign AND enter the date the Contract is signed. 
See section above under "P.nticipated Start Date'. Rubber stamps, typed or other 
images are not accepted, The Autirodzed Sgnatory must be an employee within the 
Department legally responsible for the Contract. See Department Head Sionature 
Authorization. The Deparbnent must have the legislative funding appropriated for all the 
costs of this Contract or funding allocated under an approved lnterdepaM~ental Service 
Acreement (ISA). A Departrnenf may not contract for performance to be delivered to or by 
another state deparUnemt without specific legislative authorization (unless this ConUact is a 
Statewide ContracS). For Contrads requiring Secretariat signoif, evidence of Secretariat 
signoff must be included in the Contract file. 

Department Name (Title: Enter the Authorized Signatorys name and UUe tegibty. 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATIONS AND LEGAL REFERENCES 
BRIEF DESCRiPT;ON OF CONTRACT PERFORPAANCE 

Enter a brief description of the Contact performance, project name andlar other ides&Eying 
information for the Contract to specifically identify the Contract performance, match the 
Contract with attachments, determine the appropriate expenditure coda (as fisted in the 
Expenditure Classification Handuook) or to Identity or clarify important information related to 
the Contract such as rho Fiscal Years) of performance (ex. "FY2012" or "FY2012-14"). 
Identify seUlemenis or other exceptions and attach more detailed justification and 
supporting documents. Enter "Multi-Department Use" if other Departments can access 
procurement. For Amendments, identify the purpose and what items are being amended. 
A4erely stating "see attached" or referendng attachments without a narrative description of 
performance is insufficient. 

ANTICIPATED START DAFE 

The Ceparment and Contractor must certiry WHEN obligations under this 
ConUacUAmendment may be incurred. Option 1 is the default option when performance 
may begin as of the Effective Date (latest signature date and any required approvals). IF the 
parties want a new Contractor renewal to begin as of the upcoming fiscal year then list the 
fiscal years) (ex. "FY2012° or "FY2012-14"} in pre Brief Description section. Performance 
starts and encumbrances reflect the default Effective Date (if no FY is listed) or the later FY 
start date (f a FY is listed). Use Option 2 only when the Contract wilt be signed well in 
advance of the start date and Identify a specific future start date. Do not use Option 2 for a 
fiscal year start unless it is cedain chat (he Contract will be signed prior to fiscal year. Option 
3 is used in lieu of the Settlement and Release Form when the ContracUAmendment is 
signed late, and obligations have already been Incurred by the ConUactor prior to the 
Effective Date for which tiro Department has either requested, accepted or deemed legally 
eligible far reimbursement, and the Contract includes supporting documents justifying the 
performance or proof of eligibility, and approximate costs. Any obligations incurred outside 
the scope of the Effective Oate under any Option listed, even if the incorrect Option fs 
selected, shall be automatically deemed a sefflemeni included under the terms of the 
Contract and upon payment to the Contractor will re;ease the Commonwealth from further 
obligations for the Identified performance. A9 settlement payments require justification and 
must be under same encumbrance and object codes as the Contract payments. 
Performance dates are subject to G.L. c.4, § 9. 

CONTRACT END DATE 

Notwithstanding verbal or other representations by the parties, the "EffecBve Date° of this 
Conhact or Amendment shall be the latest date that this Contract w Amendment has been 
executed by an authorized signatory of the Cantraclar, the Department, or a later Contract 
or Amendment Start Date specked, subject to any required approvals. The Conractor 
makes al# certifications required under this Contract under the paths and penalties of 
perjury, and agrees to provide any required documentation upon request to support 
comptlance: and agrees that all terms governing performance of ibis Contract and doing 
business in Massachusetts are attached or Incorporated by reference herein: 
Commorwealih and Contractor Ownership Rlghis. The Contractor certifies and agrees 
that the Cammonwealttt is entitled fo ownership and possesslort of all "deliverables" 
purchased or developed with Contract funds. A Department may not relinquish 
Commonwealth rights to deliverables nor may Contractors sett products developed with 
Commonwealth resources wigtout just compensation. The Contact should detail alt 
Commanweatih deliverables and ownership rights and any Contractor proprietary rights. 

Qualifications. The Conractor certifies it is qualified and shall at all times remain qualified 
fo perform this Contract; that performance shatl be timety and meet or exceed industry 
standards for the performance required, including obtaining requisite licenses, registrations, 
permits, resources for performance, and sufficient professional, liability; and otfter 
appropriate insurance to cover the performance. If the Contractor is a business, the 
Contractor certifies that it is listed under the Secretary of State's webstte as licensed to do 
business in Massachusetts, as required by taw. 
Business Ethics and Fraud, Waste and Abuse Prevention. The Contractor certifies that 
performance under this Contract, in addition to meeting the terms of the ConUact, will tie 
made using ethical business standards and good stewardship of taxpayer and other public 
funding and resources to prevent fraud, waste and abuse. 

Collusion, The Contractcr certifies that this Contract has been offered in good faith and 
without collusion, fraud or unfair trade practices with any other person, that any actions to 
avoid or frusUate fair and open competition are prohbited by law, and shall be grounds for 
rejection or disqualification of a Response or termination of this Contract. 

Public Records and Access The Contractor shall provide full access to records related to 
performance and compliance to the Department and o~ciais listed under Executive Order 
195 and G.L. c 11. s.12 seven (7j years beginning on the fi rst day after the final payment 
under this Contract or such longer period necessary for the resolution of any litigation, 
claim, negotiation, audit or other inquiry involving this Contract. Access fo view ConUactor 

{Issued 6127120( 1) Page 3 of 5 



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS ~ STANDARD CONTRACT FORM 
retards related to any breach or allegation of fraud, waste and/or abuse may not ba denied 
and CanUaclor can not claim confidentiality or trade secret protections solely forviewing but 
not retaining documents. Routine Contract performance compliance reports or documents 
related to any alleged breach or atiegatron of non-compliance, fraud, waste, abuse or 
cogusion may be provided electronically and shag be provided at Contractor's ewn 
expense. Reasonable costs for copies of non-routine Contract related records shag not 
exceed the rates for public records under 950 C.M.R. 32.00. 
Debarment. The Contractor certifies that neither it nor any of its subconUactors are 
currentty debarred or suspended by the federal or state government under any taw ce
regulation including, Executive Order 147; G.L. c 29, s. 29F G.L. c.3G, & 35R, G.L. c.149, § 
27C, G.L. c.149. § 44C, G.L. c.149 ~ f 486 and G.L. c. 152, s. 25C. 
Applicable Laws. The Contractor shag comply wiUr a!I appgcable state laws and 
regulations including but not limited to the applicable Massachusefts General Laws; the 
Official Code of Massachusetts Regulations; Cade of Massachusetts Regulations 
(unothcfal); 801 GfhR 21.00 (Procurement of Commodity and Service Procurements, 
Including Human and Social Services); 815 CMR 2.00 (Grants anal Subsidies}; S08 CMR 
_1 00 (compliance, Reporting and Auditing for Human Md Social Services)• AICPA 
Standards; confidentiagty of Department records undor G.L. c. 66A; and the Massachusetts 
Consii(uton Article XVII l 'd applicable. 
invoices. Tire Contractor must submit invoices in accordance with the terms of the Contract 
and the Commonwealth Bill Paying Po!icv. ConUactors must be able to reconcile and 
propedy atUibute concurrent payments from multiple Departments. Final invoices in any 
fiscal year must tae submitted no later than August 15~^ for performance made and received 
(goods delivered, services completed) prior to June 30~, in order to make payment for that 
performance prior to the close of the fiscal year to prevent reversion of appropriated funds. 
Failure to submit timely invoices by August 15"~ or other date listed in the Contract shall 
authorrze the Department to issue an estimated payment based upon the Department's 
determination of performance degvered and accepted. The Contractor's acceptance of this 
estimated payment releases Ehe Commonwealth from further claims for these invoices. If 
budgetary funds revert due to the Contractors failure to submit timely final invoices; or for 
disputing an estimated payment, the Department may deduct a penalty up to 10%from any 
final payment in the next fiscai year for fa'slure to submit timely invoices. 

Payments Subject To Apprapriatian. Pursuant to G.L. c. 29 § 26, § 27 and § 29, 
Departments are required to expend funds only far the purposes reel forth by the Legislature 
and within the funding limits established through appropriation, allotment and subsidiary, 
including mandated alloUnent reductions tdggered by G.L. c. 29. & 9C. A Department 
cannot authorize or accept performance in excess of an existing appropriation and 
allotment, orsufficientoon-appropriated available funds. Any oral orwritten representations, 
commitments, or assurances made by the Depadmenf err any other Commonwealth 
representative are not binding. The Commonwealth has no legal obligation to Compensate 
a Contractor for performance that is not requested and is intentionally delivered by a 
Contractor outside the scope of a Contract. Contractors should verify funding prior to 
beginning performance. 
Intercept. Contractors may be registered as Customers in the Vendor file if the Contractor 

awes a Commonwealth debt. Unresolved and undssputed debts, and overpayments of 
Contract payments that are not reimbursed timely shalt be subject to intercept pursuant to 
G.L. e. 7A. s. 3 and 815 CMR 9.00. ConUaci overpayments wig be subject to immediate 
intercept or payment offset. The Contractor may not penalize any slater Department or 
assess sate fees, cancel a Contract or other services ff amounts are intercepted or offset 
due to recoupment of an overpayment, aulstanding taxes, child support, other overdue 
debts or ConUact overpayments. 

Tax Law Compliance. The Contractor certifies under the pains and penalties of perjury fax 
compliance with Federal tax laws; State tax caws including but not gmited to G.L. c. 62C 
G.L. c. 62C, s. 49A~ compliance with all state tax fawn, repoNng of employees and 
contractors, withholding and remitting of tax wi0tholdings and child support and is in good 
standing with respect to all state taxes and returns due; reporting of employees and 
contractors under G.L. c. 62E, withholding and remitting child support including G.L. c. 
119A, s. f 2; TIR 05-11; New Independent Contractor Provisions and applicable T1Rs.

Bankruptcy, Judgments, Potential Structural Changes, Pending Legal Matters and 
Conflicts. The Contractor certifies it has not been in bankruptcy andlor receivership within 
the last three calendar years, and the Contractor Certifies that it will immediateiy notify the 
Department in writing at (oast 45 days prior to filing for bankruptcy andlor receivership, 
any potential structural change in its organization, or if there is any risk to the solvency of 
the Contractor that may impact the Contractors abiffty to timely fulfill the terms of this 
Contract or Amendment. The Contractor certifies that at any time during the period of the 
Contract the Ccntractor is required to affirmatively disclose in writing to the Department 
Contract Manager the details of any judgment, criminal conviction, investigation or litigation 
pending against the Contractor or any of lire officers, directors, employees, agents, or 
subconUactors, including any potential conflicts of interest of which the Contractor has 
knowledge, or learns of during the ConUad term. Law firms or Attorneys providing legal 
services are required to identify any potential conflict with representation of any Department 
client in accordance with Massachusetts Board of Sar Overseers (BBD) rotes. 
Federal Anti~Lobbying and Other Federal Requirements, If receiving federal funds, the 

Contractor cedfies compliance with federai anti-Eobbying requirements including 31 USC 
1352• other federal requiremen#r Executive Order 1124fi; Air PollutiGm Act• Federal !Eater 
Pollution ConUoi Aci and Federal Employment Laws. 
Protection of Personal Data and Information. The Contractor certifies that all steps will 
be taken to ensure the security and confidentiality of ail Commonwealth data for which the 
Contractor becomes a holder, either as part of performance or inadvertently during 
performance, with speciai attention to restdctir>g access, use and disbursement of personal 
data and information under G.L. c. 93H and c. 66A and Executive Order 504. The 
Contractor is squired to comply with G.L. c 93i for the proper disposal of all paper and 
electronic media, backups or systems containing personal data and information, provided 
further that the Contractor is required to ensure that any personal data err information 
Uansmitted electronically or through a potlable device he properly encrypted using (at a 
minimum} Information TechnelagY Division (ITD} Protection of Sensitive lnformatian 
provided fudher that any CanUactar having access to credit card or banking information of 
Commonwealth customers certifies that the Contractor is PCI compliant in accordance with 
the Payment Card Industry Council Standards and shall provide confirmation compliance 
during the Contract, provide further that the ConUactor shit immediately no0fy the 
Cepartment in the event of any security breach including the unauthorized access, 
disbursement, use or disposal of persona! data err information, and in the avant of a security 
breach, the Contractor shall cooperate fully with the Commonwealth and provide access to 
any information necessary for the Commonwealth to respond to the security broach and 
shat! be fully responsihla for any damages associated with the Contractors breach 
including buk not limited io G.L. c. 2 i 4. s. 3B. 
Corporate and Business Filings and Reports. Tha Contractor certifies compliance with 
any cerf~cation, filing, reporting and service of process requirements o1 the Secretary of the 
Commonwealth, the Otffce of the Altamay Genecat or other Depadrrrents as related to its 
conduct of business in the Commonwealth; and with its incorporating state {or foreign 
entity}. 
Employer Requirements, Contractors that are employers certiry compliance with 
applicable state and federal employment taws or regulations, including but not limited to 
G.L c 5. s. 1 (Prev~ting Wages for Pdnling and Disinbutan of Public Documents); G.t. c. 
7, s. 22 (P;evailinq Wads for Contracts far Meat Products and Clefhingand Aoparei)• 
minimum wages and prevailing wage prGgrams and payments; unempiovment insurance 
and contributions; workers' compensation and insurance, child labor laws, AGO fair labor 
praehces G.L. c. 149 (Labor and Industries); G.L. c. iSCA (Labor Re}aliens;; G.L. c. 151 
and 455 Chin 2.G0 (Minimum Fair Wages)• G.L. c. t51A (Employment and Training); _G L. 
c. 1518  (Unlawhtl Discrimination); G.L. C. 151E (Business Discrminationp G.L. c. t52 
(Workers' Compensafion)~ G.L. c.153 (Liability for Injuries); 29 USC c, 8 {Federal Fair Labor 
Standards); 29 USC c. 28 and the Federal Family and Medical Leave Aet. 

Federal And State Laws And Regulations Prohibiting Discrimination including but not 
limited to the Federal Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Laws the Americans with 
Disabiiibes Acf,: 42 U.S.0 Sec. 12,101. et seq., the Rehabi#itafian Act, 29 USC c. 16 s. 794' 
29 USC c. 16. s. 701. 29 llSC c. 14. fi23 the 42 USC c. 45, (Federal Fair Housing Act); G. 
L. a 1518  (Unlawful Discrimination)• G.L. c. 151E (Business Discrminaticn}; the Public 
Accommodations Law G.L. c. 272, s. 92A• G.L. c. 272, s 98 and 98A, MassachuseP~s 
Canstituflon Article CXPJ and G.L, c. 93. s. 103. 47 USC c. 5, sc. II. Part If, s. 255 
(Telecommunication Act; Chapter 149, Section t05D, G.L. c. 154C, G.L. c. 272 Section
924. Section 98 and Section 98A, and G.L, c. 111, Section 199A and Massachusetts 
Disability-Based Non-Discrimination Standards Fcr Executive Branch Entities, and related 
Standards and Guidance, authorized under Massachusetts Executive Order or any 
disability-based protedicn arising from state or federal law or precedenE. See also MCAD
and MCAD links and Resources. 
Snail Business Purchasing Program (SBPP}. A Contractor may be eligible to participate 
th the SBPP, created pursuant to Executive Order 523 if qualified through the SBPP 
Smart8id subscription process at: vrnw.cemm-pass,com and with acceptance of the terms 
of the SBPP participation agreement. 

Limitation of tiabiliy for lnfarmation Technology Contracts (and other Contracts as 
Authorized), The lnformatian Technology l~iandatory Specificaticns and the IT Accuisi6on 
ACcessbiii'y Contract Language are incorporated by reference into information Technology 
Contracts. The following language will apply to Information Technology conUacls in the 
U01, UO2, UO3, U04, U05, U08, U07, U08, U09, U10, U75, U98 object codes in the 
Expenditure CiassifiCal~.00 Handbook or ocher Conbacts as approved by CTR or OSD. 
Pursuant to Section 11. Indemnification of the Commonwealth Terms and Conditions, the 
term "other damages" shat) include, but shall not be limited fo, the reasonable costs the 
Commonwealth incurs to repair, return, replace or seek cover (purchase of comparable 
substitute commodities and services} under a Contract. "Other damages' shall not include 
damages to the Commonwealth as a result of third party claims, provided, however, that the 
foregoing in no way limits the Commonwealth's r'sght of recovery far personal in}ury or 
property damages or patent and copyright infringement under Section 11 nor the 
Commonwealth's ability to join the contractor as a third party defendant. Further, the tens 
"ottrer damages" shall oat include, and in no event shall the contractor be liable for, 
damages for the Commonwealth's use of conlraClor provided products or services, toss of 
Commonwe~th records, or data (orother intangible property), loss of use of equipment, last 

(Issued 612712011) Pager 4 of 5 



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS ~ STANDARD CONTRACT FORM 

revenue, lost savings or lost profits of the Commonwealth. In no event shah 'other 
damages" exceed the greater of $100,000, or two times Ute value of the product or service 
(as defined In the Contract scope of work) that is the subject of the claim. Sec0on 11 sets 
forth the contractor's entire liability under a Contract Nothing in this section shall limit the 
CommartwealOt's ability to negotiate higher limitations of liability in a particular Contract, 
provided (flat any such limitation must specifically reference Section 11 of the 
Commonwealth Terms and Condi0ons. In the event the limitation of liability conflicts with 
accounting standards which mandate that there can he no cap of damages, the laudation 
shalh be considered waived for that audit engagement. These terms may be applied to 
other Contracts only waft prior written confirmation from the Opera6ana! Services Division 
or the Office of the CampUoller. The terms in this Clarifcation may not be modified. 

Northern Ireland Certification. Pursuant to G.L. c. 1 s. 22C for state agencies, state 
avthori0es, the House of Representatives or the state Senate, by signing this Contrac; the 
Contractor cerOfies that it does not employ ton or more employees in an office or other 
facility in Northern Ireland and if the Contractor employs ten or more employees in an office 
or other facility located in Northern Ireland the Contractor certifies that it does not 
discriminate in employment, compensation. or the Perms, conditions and privileges of 
employment on account of religious or political belief; and it promotes religious tolerance 
withal the work place, and the eradication of any manifestations of religious and other illegal 
discrimination; and the Contractor is not engaged in the manufacture, distribution or solo of 
firearms, munitions, including rubber or plastic bullets, tear gas, armored vehicles or military 
aircraft foruse or deployment in any activity in Norihem Ireland. 

Pandemic, Disaster or Emergency Performance. In the event of a serious emergency, 
pandemic or disaster outside the contra] of Ote Departrnent, the Department may negotiate 
emergency performance from the Contrac{or to address the immediate needs of the 
Commonwealth even if not contemplated under the orig'snal Contract or procurement. 
Payments are subject to appropriation and other payment terms. 

Consultant Contractor Certifications (For Consultant ConUacis "HH"and "NN"and "U05" 
object codes subject to G.L. Chapter 29. s. 29A). Contractors must make required 
disclosures as part of the RFR Response or using the Consultant Cortraclar Mancatory 
Submission Form. 
Attorneys. Attorneys or firms providing legal services or representing Commonwealth 
Departments may be subject to Gi. c. 30, s. 65, and if providing litigation services must be 
approved by the Office of the Attorney General to appear on behalf of a Oepartmenl, and 
shall have a continuing obligation to notify the CommonwealUt of any conflicts of interest 
zrising under the Contract. 
Subcontractor Performance. The Contractor certifies full responsibility for Contract 
performance, inclu~ng subcontractors, and that camparabhe Contract terms wilt be included 
in subcontracts, and tttat the DepaMtent wig not be required to directly or indirectly manage 
subconiractors or have any payment obligations to subcontractors. . 

EXECUTIVE ORDERS 

For covered Executive state Departments, the Contractor certifies compliance vrith 
applicable Executive Orders (sae also Massachusetts Executive Orders), including but not 
limited to the specific orders listed below. A breach during period of a Contract may be 
wnsidered a material breach and subject Contractor to appropriate monetary or Contract 
sanctbns. 

Executive Order 481. Prohibiting the Use of Undocumented Wortcers on State Contracts. 
Far alt state agencies in the Executive Branch, including all executive offices, boards, 
commissions, agencies, Departments, divisions, councils, bureaus, and offices, now 
existing and hereafter established, by signing this Contract dre Contractor certifres under 
the pains and penalties of perjury that they shall nai knowingly use undocumented workers 
U connection with the performance of this Contract; that, pursuant to federal requirements, 
shat) verify the immigration status of workers assigned to a Contract without engaging in 
unlawful discrimination; and shall not knowingly or recklessly alter, falsify, or accept altered 
or falsified documents from any such worker 
Executive Order 130. Anti-Bovoott. The Contractor wananis, represents and agrees that 
during the time this Contract fs in effect, neither it nor any affiliated company, as hereafter 

defined, participates in ar cooperates w,1h an iniemational boycott (See IRC 6 999(bU3}-(4l 
and IRS Audit Guidelines Boycotts} or engages in conduct declared to be unlawful by GA L 
c. 15fE. s 2. A breach in the warranty, representation, and agreement contained in this 
paragraph, without limiting such other rights as it may have, the Commonwealth shall be 

entitled to rescind this Contract. As used herein, an affiliated company shall be any 

business entity of which at feast 51 % of the ownership interests are directly or indirectly 
owned by the Contractor or by a person or persons or business entity or entities directly or 
indirectly owning at least 51 %of the ownership Interests of the Contractor, or which directly 
or indirectly owns at feast 51 %of the ownership interests of the Contractor. 

Executive Order 346.  Hiring of State Employees By State Contractors  Contractor certifies 
complance with both the conflict of interest law G.~ c. 268A specifcally s. 5 tit and this 
order; and includes limitations regarding the hiring of slate employees by private companies 

contracting with the CommonwealU. A privatization contract shat! be deemed to include a 

specific prohibition against the hiring at any time during the term of Contract, and for any 

position in the ComUactor's company, any state management employee who is, was, or will 

be involved at the preparation of the RFP, the negotiations leading to the awarding of the 

ConUact, the decision to award the Contract, andlor the supervision or oversight of 
performance under the Contract. 
Executive Order 444. Disclosure of Family Rela6or==ships Wilh Other State Emotovees. 
Each person apptying for employment {including Contract work) wiUtin Ote Executive 
Branch under the Governor must disclose in writing the names of all Immediate family 
related to immediate family by marriage who serve as employees or elected officals of the 
Commonwealth. All disclosures made by applicants hired by the Executive Branch under 
the Governor shall be made available for public Utspectiat to the extent permissible by law 
by the official with whom such disclosure has been filed. 
Executive Order 504. Regarding the Security and Confidentiality of Personal Information. 
For all Contracts involving the ConUactaPs access to personal information, as defined in 
G.L. c. 93H and persona! data, as defined in G.L. c. 66A, owned or controlled by Executive 
Department agencies, ar access Eo agency systems containing such information ar data 
(herein collectively "personal information"), Conractor certifies under the pains and 
penaiGes of perjury that the Contractor {1} has read Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
Executive Order 504 and agrees to protect any and all personal information; and (2) has 
reviewed all of the Commonwealth Enformation Technelogy Division's Security Policies. 
Notwigtsianding any contractual provision to the contrary, in connection with the 
Contractor's performance under this Contract, for alt state agencies in the Executive 
Department, including ail executive offices, boards, commissions, agencies, departments, 
divisons, councils, bureaus, and offices, now existing and hereafter established, the 
Contactor shaft: (1) obtain a copy, review, and comply with the contracting agency's 
infarmation Security Program {ISP) and any pertinent security guidelines, standards, and 
policies; {2) comply with all of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Information 
Technology Division's "S~urtty Policies") (3) communicate and enforce the contracOng 
agency's ISP and such Security Policies against all employees (whether such employees 
are direct or contracted} and subcontractors; (4) implement and maintain any other 
reasonable appropriate security prccedures and practices necessary to protect personal 
information Eo which the Contractor is given access by the contracting agency from the 
unauthorized access, desUuetion, use, modification, disclosure or loss; (5} be responsible 
for the full or partial breach of any of these terms by its empbyees (whether such 
employees are direct or contracted) or subconractors dtxing or after the term of this 
Contract, and any breach of these terms may be regarded as a material breach of Utls 
Contract; {&) in the event of any unautitorized access, desUuc0on, use, modification, 
disclosure or loss of the personal information (collectively referred to as the 'Lnauthorized 
use'): {a) immediately notify the cantrar~ing agency ff the Contractor becomes aware of the 
unauthorized use; (b} provide full cooperation and access to information necessary far the 
contracting agency to determine the scope of the unaulttorized use; and (c) provide full 
cooperation and access to information necessary for the contracting agency and the 
Contractor to fulfill any noti@cation requirements. Breach of these terms maybe regarded as 
a material breach of this Contract, such that the Commonweath may exercise any and alt 
contractual rights and remedies, including wititout limitation Indemnification under Section 
11 of the Commenwaalth's Terms and Conditions withholding of payments, Contract 
suspension, as termination. In addition, the Conractar may be subject io app"icable 
statutory or regulatory penalties, including and without limitation, those imposed pursuant to 
G.L. c. 93H and under G.L. c. 214. § 3B for violations under M.G.L c. 6fiA, 
Executive Orders 523. 524 and 526. Executive Order 526 (Order Regarding Norn 
Discrimination, Diversity, Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Ac#ion which supersedes 
Executive Order 4781. Executive Order 524 (Establishing the Massachusetts Supplier 
Diversity Program which supersedes Executive Order 390). Executive Order 523 
(Establishing the Massachusetts Small Business Purchasing Program.) Att programs. 
activities, and services provided, performed, licensed, chartered, funded, regulated, or 
contracted ter by the state shall be conducted without unlawful discrimination based on 
race, color, age, gender, ethnicity, sexual orientation, gender identity ar expression, relgion. 
creed, ancestry, national origin, disability, veteran's status (including Vietnam-ore veterans), 
or background. The Contractor and any subcontractors may not engage in discriminatory 
employment practices; and the Contractor certifies compliance with applicable federal and 
slate laws, rotes, and regulations governing fair tabor and employment practices; and the 
Contractor commits le purchase supplies and services from certified minority or women-
owned businesses, small businesses, or businesses owned by socially or economically 
disadvantaged persons or persons with disabilities. Those provisions shall be enforced 
through the contracting agency, OSD, andlor the Massachusetts Commission Against 
Discrimination. Any breach shall be regarded as a material breach of the contract that may 
subject the contractor to appropriate sanc0ons. 

(Issued 6!27!201 f) Page 5 of 5 



COMMONWEALTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

'this Commonweahh Terms and Conditions form is 

jointly issued by the Executive OElice for 

Administration and Finance (ANF}, the Office of the 

Comptroller (CTR) and the Operational Services 

Division (OSD) for use by all Cornmontvealth of 

Massachusetts ("State") Departments and Contractors. Artp c/rarrges or 
electratic alterations by either the Departrrtent or the Conh•actor to dte 

ajfrcfal version of ibis farar, as joinrl~~ published by AA`F, CTR mtd OSD, 

stroll be void. Upor, execution of these Commonwealth Tenns and Conditions 

by the Contractor and filing as prescribed by the Office of the Comptroller, 

these Commoncvealth Tenns and Conditions will be incorporated by reference 

into any Contract For Catmnodities and Services executed by the Contractor 

and any State Deparbnent, in the absence of a superseding law or regulation 

requiring a different Contract form. Performance shall include sen=ices 

rendered, obligations due, costs incurred, commodities and deliverables 

provided and accepted by the Department, programs provided ar other 

cotmmilments authorized under a Contract. A deliverable shall include any 

tangible product to be delivered as an element of performance under a Contract. 

'Che Commoncvealth is entitled to ownership and possession of all deliverables 

purchased or developed with State funds. Contract shall mean the Standard 

Contract Form issued jointly by ANF, CTR and OSD. 

1. Contrttct Ef1eciive Start Date. Notwithstanding verbal or other 

representations by the parties, or an earlier start date indicated in a Conirect, the 

effective start date of performance under a Contract shall be the date a Contract 

has been executed by an authorized signatory of the Contractor, the 

Deparbnent, a later date specified in the Contract or the date of any approvals 

required by law or regulation, whichever is later. 

2. Pavntents And Conrpensafion. The Contractor shall only be compensated 

for performance delivered and accepted by the Department in accordance with 

the specific terms and conditions of a Contract. All Contract payments are 

subject to appropriation pursuant to M.G.L. C. 29, §26, or the availability of 

sufficient non-appropriated funds for the purposes of a Contract, and shall be 

subject to intercept pursuant to M.G.L. G. 7A, §3 and 8l5 CMR 9.00. 

Overpayments shall be reimbursed by the Contractor or may be offset by the 

Department frmn future payments in accordance with stale finance law. 

Acceptance by rho Con€rector of any payment or partial payment, without any 

written objection by the Contractor, shall in each instance operate as a release 

and discharge of the Slate from all claims, liabilities or other obligations 

relating !o the performance of a Contract. 

3. Contractor Payment Alecharrisnt. All Contractors will be paid using the 

Payment Voucher System unless a different payment mechanism is required. 

The Contractor shall timely submit invoices (Payment Vouchers -Form PV} 

and supporting docwnentation as prescribed in a Contract. The Deparimen[ 

shall review and return re}ected invoices within fifteen (IS) days of receipt with 

a vvri0en explanation far rejection. Payments shall be made in accordance with 

the bit) paying policy issued by the Offtce of rho Cornpirolfer and 8l5 CMR 

A.00, provided that payment periods fisted in s Contract of less than forty-five 

(AS) days from the date of receipt of an invoice shall be effective only to enable 

a Department to take advantage of early payment iacenlives and shall not 

subject any payment made within the forty-five (45) day period to a penalty. 

The Comractor Payroll System, shall be used only for "Individual Contractors" 

who have been determined to be "Contract Employees" as a result of the 

Department's completion of an Internal Revenue Service SS-8 form in 

accordance with the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Acl COBRA) 1490, and 

shall automatically process alt slate and federal mandated payroll, tax and 

rctiremcnt deductions. 

A. Contrail Terrninatian Or Susnerrsiort. A Contract shall terminate on the 
date specified in a Contract, unless this date is properly amended in accordance 

with all applicable laws and regulations prior to this date, or unless terminated 

or suspended under this Section upon prior written notice to the Contractor. 

The Department may terminate a Contract rvithout cause and without penalty, 

or may terninate or suspend a Contract if the Contractor breaches any material 

term or condition or fails to perform or fulfill any material obligation required 
by a Contract, or in the event of an elimination of an appropriation or 

availability of sufficient funds For the purposes of a Contract, or in the event of 

an unforeseen public emergency mandating immediate Department action. 

Upon immediate notification to the other party, neither the DeparbnenF nor the 

Contractor sttalV be deemed to be in breach for failure or delay in performance 

due !o Acts of God or other causes factually beyond their control and rvithout 

their fault or negligence. Subcontractor failure to perform or price increases 
due to market or product availability will not be deemed factually 

beyond the Contractor's control. 

5. !i'i•fttert Nptice. Any notice shall be deemed delivered and received when 

submitted in writing in person or when delivered by any other appropriate 

method evidencing actual receipt by the Department or the Contractor. Any 

written notice of lennination or suspension delivered to the Contractor shall 

state the effective date and period of the notice, the reasons for the lennination 

or suspension, if applicable, any alleged breach or failure to perform, a 

reasonable period to cure any alleged breach or failure to perform, if applicable, 

and any instructions or restrictions concerning allowable activities, costs or 

expenditures by the Contractor during the notice period. 

6. Conrderrrinfity, The Contractor shall comply with M.G.L. C. 66A if the 

Contractor becomes a "holder" of "personal data". The Contractor shall also 

protect the physical security and restrict any access to personal or other 

Department data in the Contractor s possession, or used by the Contractor in Ehe 

performance of a Contract, which shall include, but is not limited to the 

Department's public records, docmnenls, files, sofhvare, equipment or systems. 

7. Record-keepirte And Reterttiar, Inspection O/' Records. The Contractor 

shall maintain records, books, files and other data as specified in a Contract and 

in such detail as shall properly substantiate claims for payment under a 

Contract, For a minimum retention period of seven (7) years beginning on the 

first day after the Gnal payment under a Contract, or such longer period as is 

necessary for the resolution of any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other 

inquiry involving a Contract. The Department shall have access, as well as any 

parties identified under Executive Order 195, during the Contractor's regular 

business hours and upon reasonable prior notice, to such records, including on-

site reviews and reproduction of such records at a reasonable expense. 

8. Assiprr»re»t. The Cor,[ractor tray not assign or delegate, in whole or in part, 

or othern~ise transfer any liability, responsibility, obligation, duty or interest 

under a Contract, with the exception that the Contractor shall be authorized to 

assign present and prospective claims for money due to the Contractor pursuant 

to a Contract in accordance with M,G.L. C, 106, fig-318. The Contractor ntust 

provide sufficient notice of assignment and supporting documentation to enable 

Fhe Deparbnent to verify and implement the assignment. Payments to third 

party assignees will be processed as if such payments were being made directly 

to the Contractor and these payments will be subject to intercept, offset, counter 

claims or eny other Department rights which are available to the DepartmenE or 

the State against the Contractor. 

9. Strbcartractirre By Contractor Any subcontract entered iota by the 

Contractor for the purposes of fulfilling the obligations under a Contract muss 

be in writing, authorized in advance 6y the Department and shall be consistent 

with and subject to the provisions of these Commomveahh Tenns and 

Conditions and a Contract. Subcontracts will not relieve or discharge the 

Contractor from any duty, obligation, responsibility or Viability arising under a 

Contract. The Department is emitted to copies of all subcontracts and shalt not 

fie bound by any provisions contained in a subcontract to which it is not a 

party. 

1 Q. Attirntrrtive Acliau, Non Dlsn•inrinatiort Dt Hiriue And Enrplovrnent. The 

Contractor shalt comply with all federal and state laws, rules and regulations 

promoting fair employment practices or prohibiting employment discrimination 

and unfair labor practices and shall not discriminate in the hiring of any 

applicant for employrent nor shall any qualified employee be demoted, 

discharged or otherwise subject to discrimination in the tenure, position, 

promotional opportunities, wages, benefits or terms and conditions of their 

employment because of race, color, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, religion, 

disability, handicap, sexual orientation or for exercising any rights afforded by 

law. The Contractor cormnits to purchasing supplies and services tram 

certified minority or women-owned businesses, small businesses or businesses 

owned by socially or economically disadvantaged persons ar persons with 

disabilities. 
11. Grde»uri[icaliarr. Unless otherwise exempted by lave, the Contractor shall 

indemnify and hold harmless the State, including the Department, its agents, 
officers and employees against any and all claims, liabilities and costs for any 

personal injury or property damages, patent or copyright infringement or other 

damages that the State may sustain which arise out of or in connection with the 
Contractors performance of a Contract, including but not limited to the 

negligence, reckless or intentional conduct of the Contractor, its agents, 

officers, employees or subcontractors. The Contractor shall at no tune be 

considered an agent or representative of the Department or the State. After 

prompt notification of a claim by the State, rho Contractor shall have an 

opportunity to participate in the defense of such claim and any negotiated 

settlemenE agreement or judgment. The State shall oat be liable for any costs 

incured by the Contractor arising under this paragraph. Any indemniEicatiotr of 

the Contractor shalt be subject to appropriation and applicable lacy. 

Page I . of 2. 



COMMONWEALTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

12. {{ wirers. Forbearance or indulgence in any form or 

manner by a party shalt not be construed as a waiver, 

nor in any tvay limit Ehe legal or equitable remedies 

available to that party. No waiver by either party of any 

default or breach shall constitute a waiver of any 

subsequent default or breach. 

13. Risk Of!_oss. The Contractor shall beat the risk of loss far any Contractor 

materials used for a Contract and for alt deliverables, Deparhnens personal or 

other data which is in the possession of the Contractor or used by the 

Contractor in the performance of a Contract until possession, ownership and 

full legal title to the deliverables are transferred to and accepted by the 

Department. 

14. Forrr»,. Choice of Laty Arad blerliario». Any actions arising out of a 

Contract shall be governed by the fates of Massachusetts, and shall be brought 

and maintained in a State or federal court in Massachusetts which shall have 

exclusive jurisdiction thereof. The Department, with the approval of the 

Attorney General's Office, and the Contractor may agree to voluntary mediation 

through the Massachusetts Office of Dispute Resolution (MODR) of any 

Contract dispute and will share the costs of such rnediatian. No legal or 

equitable rights of the parties shalt be limited by this Section, 

15. Contract Boilerplate ]trternreratio», Severabilitt4 Co»1licrs IVith Lmv, 

lerepraiiorr. Any amendment or attachment to any Contract which contains 

conflicting language or has the affee! of a deleting, replacing or modifying any 
printed language of these Commonwealth'fenns and ndiu s, as officially 

published by ANF, CTR and OSD, shall be inter eted as supers d by t 

CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZED SIGNATt321~Y:y

Print Name: Ronald Beaty, Ronald Bergstrom, Mary Pat Flynn 

Title: County Commissioners 

Date: 

(Check One): _x_Organization 

Full Legal Organization or Individual Name: 

Individual 

Couoty of Barnstable 

official printed language. If any provision of a Contract is found to be 

superseded by state or federal law or regulation, in whole or in part, then both 

parties shall be relieved of all obligations under that provision only to the 

extent necessary to comply with the superseding taw, provided however, that 
the remaining provisions of the Contract, or portions thereof, shall be enforced 

to the fullest extent permitted by late. All amendments must be executed by the 

parties in accordance with Section 1. of these Cotnmontvealih Terms and 

Conditions and filed with the original record copy of a Contract as prescribed 

by CTR. The printed language of the Standard Contract Fonn, as officially 

published by ANF, CTR and OSD, which incorporates by reference these 

Commonwealth Teens and Conditions, shall supersede any conflicting verbal 

or written agreements relating to the performance of a Contract, or attached 

thereto, including contract forms, purchase orders or invoices of the Contractor. 

The order of priority of docutnents to interpret a Contract shall be as follows: 

Fhe printed language of the Cotnmonwealilt Teens and Conditions, the 

Standard Contrsct Fonm, the Department's Request for Response (RFTt) 

solicitation document and the Contractor s Response !o the RFR solicitation, 

excluding any ]anguage stricken by a Department as unacceptable and 
including any negotiated teens and conditions allowable pursuam to late or 
regulation. 

11`I \VITNESS 1VIlEREOF, The Contractor certify under the pains and 

penalties of perjury that it shall comply with these Commonwealth Terms 

and Condtttons far any appUcable Contract executed with the 

omrnonwealltrgs certified~,t reir auj)~~ed stgnato~low: 

Doing Business As: Name (If Different): Barnstable County 

Tax Identification Number: 04-6001419 

Address: 3195 Main Street, Barnstable , MA 02630 

Telephone: 508 375 -6671 FAX: 508 362 -4136 

(signature) 

INSTRfICTIOA'S FOR FILING TILE COtY7i110N1I''EALTH TERMS,4NLi CONDITIO,~VS 

A "Rdquest for Verification of Taxation Reporting tnfom~ation" form (Massachusetts Substitute W-9 Format), that contains the Contractor's 

correct TIN, name and legal address information, must be on file with the Office of the Comptroller If the Contractor has not previously 

fled this fomt with the Comptroller, or if the information contained on a previously filed form has changed, please fill out a W-9 form and 

return it attached to the executed COMMONIVEALTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

If the Contractor is responding to a Request for Response (RFR), the COMMONWEALTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS must be submitted 

with the Response to RFR or as specified in the RFR. Otherwise, Departments or Contractors must timely submit the completed and 

property executed COMMONWEALTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS (and the W-9 form if applicable) to the: Payee mrd Pay»rettts Urtet, 
Offrce of t/re Coerptroller, 9tA Floor, Orre Asbbtrrtoa Place, Bostorr, AIA 17210$ in order to record the filing of this form on the MMARS 

Vendor File. Contractors are required to execute and file this form only once. 

Page 2. o f 2. 



COMMOl~~WEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY LISTING 

CONTRACTOR LEGAL NAME 
CONTRACTOR VENDOR/CUSTOMERCQDE: 

Issued May 
2004 

PROOF OF AUTHENTICATION OF SIGNATURE 

This page is optional and is available for a department to authenticate contract signatures. 

It is recommended that Departments obtain authentication of signature for the signatory 

who submits the Contractor Authorized Listing. 

This Section MUST be completed by the Contractor Authorized Signatory in presence of notary. 

Signatory's full legal name (print or type): 

Title:County Commissioners 

Signature as it will appear on cdntr~ct or other document (Com fete only in pres, 

AUTHENTICATED BY NOTARY OR CORPORATE CLERK (PICK ONLY ONE) AS FOLLOWS: 

I, (NOTARY) as a notary public certify that I u~i~nessed 

the signature of the aforementioned signatory above and I verified the individual's identity on this date: 

~~nuos•~ ~(}, 2019 

My commission expires on: 02~2,F~ 2.5 

I, 

AFFIX NOTAl~Y SEAL 

(CORPORATE CLERK) certify that I witnessed the 

signature of the aforementioned signatory above, that I verified the individual's identity and confirm the individual's 

authority as an authorized signatory for the Contractor on this date: 

,20 

AFFIX CORPORATE SEAL 



Issued May 

2004 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY LISTING 

CONTRACTOR LEGAL NAME: Click here to enter• text. 
CONTRACTOR VENDOR/CUSTOMER CODE: 

INSTRUCTIONS: Any Contractor (other than asole-proprietor or an individual contractor} must provide a 

listing of individuals who are authorized as legal representatives of the Contractor who can sign contracts and 

other legally binding documents related to the contract on the Contractor's behalf. In addition to this listing, any 

state department may require additional proof of authority to sign contracts on behalf of the Contractor, or proof 
of authenticity of signature (a notarized signature that the Department can use to verify that the signature and date 

that appear an the Contract or other legal document was actually made by the Contractor's authorized signatory, 

and not by a representative, designee or other individual.) 

NOTICE: Accepta~rce of any payme~rt u~rder a Contract or Grant shall operate as a waiver of any defense by 

the Contractor challe~rging the existence of a valid Contract drre to au alleged lack of actual authority to execute 

tlse docrntiei:t by the sig~ratory. 

For privacy purposes DO NOT ATTACH any documentation containing personal information, such as bank 

account numbers, social security numbers, driver's licenses, home addresses, social security cards or any other 

personally identifiable information that you do not want released as part of a public record. The Commonwealth 

reserves the right to publish the names and titles of authorized signatories of contractors. 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY NAME TITLE 

Ronald Bergstrom County Conunissioner 

Mary Pat Flynn County Conunissioner 

Ronald R. Beaty County Conunissioner 

I certify that I am the President, Chief Executive Officer, Cluef Fiscal Officer, Corporate Clerk or Legal Counsel 

for the Contractor and as an authorized officer of the Contractor I certify that the names of the individuals 

identified on this listing are current as of the date of execution below and that these individuals are authorized to 

sign contracts and other legally binding documents related to contracts with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

on behalf of the Contractor. I understand and agree that the Contractor has a duty to ensure that this listing is 

immediately updated and communicated to any state department with which the Contractor does business 

whenever the authorized signatories above retire, are otherwise teniunated from the Contractor's employ, have 

their responsibilities changed resulting in their n longer being authorized to sign contracts with the 

Commonwealth or whenever new signatories are des'+~iiated. 

Title: Barn County Adm' rator 

Fax: (508} 362-4136 

Date: ~~ ~~/ 

Telephone: (508} 375-6771 

jack.yuni#s@barnstablecounty.org 



20190306 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8g 
 

Authorizing the execution of amendments to mortgages and security agreements 
with 704 Falmouth Housing Corporation, LLC on property located at 587 Gifford 
Street in the town of Falmouth 

  



 

 
 
 
  

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

3195 Main Street, Post Office Box 427 
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630 

Office: 508-375-6628 | Fax: 508-362-0290 
www.bchumanservices.net 

 
  

 

 
  
 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY HOME PROGRAM 
MEMORANDUM 

 
  To: Jack Yunits, Town Administrator / County Commissioners 

CC Michael Dutton 

From: Renie Hamman, HOME Program Manager 

RE: 587 Gifford Street, Falmouth 
Amendment of Mortgages 

Date: March 6, 2019 

 
Enclosed are two Amendments of Mortgages for 587 Gifford Street, Falmouth, Massachusetts (the 
“Existing Property Site”) that our Attorney, Michael Dutton, reviewed and approved.  The Existing 
Property Site currently contains thirty-six (36) residential housing units on 12.4± acres of land.  The 
property is owned by 704 FHC, LLC, (“FHC”)1. 

FHC is now proposing to construct twenty (20) new one-bedroom housing units at the site under the 
DHCD’s Community Scale Housing Initiative.  This new project will require that the Existing 
Property Site be divided by a recorded plan to create a new 1.2 acre± parcel of land (the “New Parcel”) 
to facilitate the construction and financing of the 20 one-bedroom project.  Thus, an Amendment to the 
original mortgages held by Barnstable County are required to release the 1.2 acre± New Parcel from 
these mortgages.  (Copy of Letter of Request and copy of existing plan and new proposed plan are 
enclosed for reference) 

There are currently two existing Barnstable County mortgages held on the Existing Site, copies of 
which are attached hereto: 

• Mortgage and Security Agreement in the amount of $125,000 
• HOME Investment Partnership Program Mortgage and Security Agreement in the amount of 

$100,000 

An Amendment of Mortgage for each of the above referenced mortgages requiring County 
Commissioners’ signature and notarization of same is enclosed.   

Please note the Plan Book and Page of the Plan of Land referenced in the Amendments will be filled in 
at time of closing as it will be recorded at the same time of the Amendments.    

                                                 
1 704 FHC, LLC, is a successor in record title to Falmouth Housing Corporation, the Mortgager in the Mortgage Security 
Agreement  































Bk 19435 pg343 02443 

01-12-2005 a 02:09p 

HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM 
MORTGAGE AND SECURITY AGREEMENT 

(Property Address: 587 Gifford Street, Falmouth, MA) 

.µ, This MORTGAGE AND. SECURITY AGREEMENT (this "Mortgage"), made as of this 
_// __ day of January, 2005, is given by 704 FHC LLC, a Massachusetts limited liability company 
having an address at 115 Scranton Avenue, Falmouth, Massachusetts 02540, as Mo11gagor, in favor 
of BARN ST ABLE COUNTY, a body politic of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, acting by and 
through the Cape Cod Commission, with a mailing address at 3225 Main Street, P.O. Box 226, 
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630, as Mortgagee. 

ARTICLE I. GRANTING CLAUSE 

Mortgagor, FOR CONSIDERATION PAID, HEREBY GRANTS to Mortgagee, with 
mortgage covenants, to secure the payment of ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND 00/100 
DOLLARS ($100,000.00), with interest and any other charges due thereon, payable as provided in 
Mortgagor's Promissory Note of even date herewith (the "Note"), to secure the performance of all 
covenants and agreements contained herein, in the Note and in a loan agreement of even date 
between Mortgagor and Mortgagee (the "Loan Agreement"), and to secure the payment and 
performance of all other debts, covenants and agreements of or by Mortgagor to or for the benefit of 
Mortgagee now existing or hereafter arising while this Mortgage is still undischarged of record, the 
land, with buildings and other improvements, whether now existing or hereafter constructed or 
located thereon, .commonly known as and numbered 587 Gifford Street, Falmouth, Barnstable 
County, Massachusetts, as more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto, together with (i) 
any and all further or additional title, estate, interest or rights which may, at any time, be acquired by 
Mortgagor in and to such land and improvements; and (ii) all rents, issues, benefits and profits 
arising from the foregoing. 

As further security for all of Mortgagor's obligations described or referred to herein, 
Mortgagor grants to Mortgagee a continuing security interest in the following property, whether 
now owned or hereafter acquired, and all additions, accessions, replacements and substitutions 
thereto and therefor and the proceeds, including insurance proceeds, thereof (hereinafter 
collectively called the "Collateral"): 

All fixtures, machinery, equipment, furniture, furnishings, goods, chattel and 
other articles of personal property now or at any time hereafter attached to or used in any 

Please return to: 

Paul Ruchinskas 
Cape Cod Commission 
3225 Main Street, P. 0. Box 226 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

12. 



The land in Falmouth, Barnstable County, Massachusetts, shown as LOT 3, containing total area 
(both upland and wetland) of541,100 square feet, more or less, on a plan entitled "Plan of Land 
prepared for Falmouth Housing and Service Center Nominee Trust, Gifford Street, Falmouth, 
Massachusetts," scale: l" = 60', date: May 26, 2000, prepared by BSS Design, Inc., which plan 
is recorded in Barnstable County Registry of Deeds Plan Book 563 Page 40. 

Said LOT 3 is more particularly bounded and described as follows: 

Beginning at the southwesterly comer _of LOT 3 , at a point on the easterly sideline of Gifford 
Street, a public way, 

Thence N 67° 18' 12" E 

Thence S 71° 28' 46" E 

Thence S 79° 27' 25" E 

Thence S 68° 41' 25" E 

Thence N 26° 08' 40" E 

Thence S 75° 00' 15" E 

by registered land now or formerly of David Peterson, 222.31 feet; 

by said Peterson land, 152.13 feet; 

by said Peterson land, 210.47 feet; 

by said Peterson land, 131.31 feet; 

by land now or formerly of Bernard Cohen, Trustee, and by land 
shown said plan as ''Valley Ridge Open Space," 162.50 feet; 

by said Valley Ridge Open Space, 248 feet, more or less, to the 
easterly edge of a maple swamp as shown on said plan; 

Thence generally northerly, then northwesterly and then westerly by land now or formerly 
of Aurelia L. Scorgie, Trustee, and by land now or formerly of 
Delinda Labeet, running by the easterly and northerly limits of said 
swamp as shown on said plan, a total distance of 860 feet, more or 
less, to the land of Delinda Labeet described in a deed recorded in 
Barnstable County Registry of Deeds Book 10941Page154 and 
shown on the plan recorded at Plan Book 65 Page 97; 

Thence S 11 ° 54' 17" W by said last mentioned Labeet land, 50 feet to a point within said 
maple swamp; 

Thence N 52° 30' 30" W 

ThenceN 49°21' 14"W 

Thence N 56° 01' 01" W 

Thence S 08° 10' 30" W 

by said Labeet land, 194.67 feet; 

by said Labeet land, 199 .4 2 feet; 

by said Labeet land, 13 .5 3 feet; 

by Lot 1 on the plan dated May 26, 2000, referred to hereinabove, 

10 



164.82 feet; 

Thence S 81° 49' 30" E by Lot 2 on said plan dated May 26, 2000, 128.97 feet; 

Thence S 07° 17' 59" E by said Lot 2, 226.72 feet; 

Thence N 81° 49' 30" W by said Lot 2, 320.03 feet; 

Thence S 51 ° 46' 49" W by said Lot 2, 261.43 feet; and 

Thence s 08° 10' 30" w by Gifford Street, 409.71 feet, to the point of beginning. 

LOT 3 is subject to a utility easement for the benefit of Lot 1 and Lot 2, within thaf area of LOT 
,2. shown on said plan dated May 26, 2000, labeled ''utility easement," within which easement 
area the owners from time to time of Lots 1 and 2 may install, maintain, replace and use utility 
service lines and conduits to serve such lots, including the right to assign or convey such 
easement to include the right to assign or convey rights therein to the Town of Falmouth and to 
public utility companies, provided that all utility service lines and conduits shall be installed 
underground (excepting transformer boxes or other fixtures normally installed on or above 
ground). 

LOT 3 has the benefit of an easement to install, maintain, replace and use utility service lines and 
conduits to serve LOT 3, within that portion of Lot 2 labeled "15' wide utility easement" and 
within the portion of Lot 1 labeled "access & utility ·easement," such easement to include the 
right to assign or convey rights thereill to the Town of Falmouth and to public utility companies, 
provided that all utility service Jines and conduits shall be installed underground (excepting 
transformer boxes or other fixtures normally installed on or above ground). Said rights include 
only utility rights and not the right to use Lot 1 or Lot 2 for access to or from Lot 3. 

Address of Premises: 587 Gifford Street, Falmouth, MA 02540 
~IJR. 'f'i-n..G" s;,,.i;; 8ooJ(. t"'/38"3, "°'1e 1r..s. 

ExhibitB 

List of Senior Mortgages 

1. That certain first priority mortgage granted to Massachusetts Housing Partnership 
Fund Board securing a promissory note in the original principal amount of 
$3,780,000.00. 

11 



2. That certain shared second priority mortgage granted to Massachusetts Housing 
Partnership FWld Board securing a pronllisory note in the original principal amount 
of$1,745,000.00. 

3. That certain shared second priority mortgage granted to the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts acting by and through the Department of Housing and Community 
Development Wlder the Affordable Housing Trust FWld Statute, M.G.L. c. 121D, 
acting by the Massachusetts Housing Finance Agency as Administrator, securing a 
promissory note in the original principal amount of$483,801.00. 

12 

BARNSTABLE REGISTRY OF DEEDS 



!l 

~ 
fl 
~ 

~ 
! 
i 
! 

i ::: ~s 
" \j;f~ 

~ i · ~j~ 

U:AQCO COll(.R(t( 
IOU/II) 'Of.me> 

Stowe IOOHC> . ., .. 
.. ~,.-.. , , .. ..,, ,· ~·a -· u r.o 
., ., ~ - '0oo~PAGL.::L.!:::: ......,, . '{-

:·:. 

.., 
0 

"" ;,, 
~ 

I! 
"' ~ 

a 
0::: ' o· 
LL i1~ . . 
~p 

I; f 

f'l /I AUCUS'llHC ii lllOUAT CCHSAl\ICS 

~ 
~ 

\SfQN(ICUJIO ....... 
OllSJtNO HCUSC 

LJ :~' 

l 

-· ..• 
./' . 

.i; 
h. 
~. 
~ 

9ti~' 
41~,~-

'-¥ ''c.,,,. 
..... 

LOT 1 
ao.010 sr 

5/~ 
~i 

.... • _!IS.9'' ~1 

LOT 2 
80.010 Sf 

''·~ .. .>· 

118,t7' 

\'"·"' 

l200Y 

IA/I O(UMDA LAIC£T 

IK lotO PC 154 

'1..Nt80Clt U ~1'tit.t1 

.t "'"'~,, ... 

A.SUS$Cllil:"t 114 01 OI 000 J 

I t!J,_ 

'I 

(\ A 

\ 

>Ill.. 

A 

A 

.!JI.. 

~ 

,.,,, l'(n;,11 .l coc.c 

f'l/1 OCUHDA LHICU 
0K ll,C::4\ 

G • 
I? 
a 

~I 
!/ 

. /t LOT 3 \\ / :J 
l JI 541,100 s.r TOTAL .<!!.. 
i / J6s.100 s.r uPUNo co"""":.j: .. , --

~fl 

s--!!.'.!!'>o.:..i_~· 

\~ 11llllt1 ••u,.,...,t 
I~ H lt'4t'l0' W 

L• ~ ... ~ 
k s 

'~ 
~ 

=-HOUS< 

,1 2~.1s· 

MC:HWAY IK'UCI f(IUM('I 

5 .• 110.000 s,r WEltANO o-"u1ie '~ \ 

·1~ ~··· r· 
- ? \ .ill.. \ 

;/' 1:..... \ I \ 
I 

I! if(.: 11·4•'J0• .!!.. ( d!L 

I ~1~ ....... !..•.s~JJ· d ~= ,....,.....,t ~ a ., ,./-- \ 
,,~ ""·-..!.."'·7r 
~ . - \ 
- -~-- ........ _ 

\ " 4 0 1 01 000 
fOIWCM. T UCOIHA 

%
~ .. 

COHc:lllClt IOuHD ;- /1 

·- i:\ ''O.•r 
tUlUltl 

s 1tirtr f 

~'I 

A A *".r ...... Y .. 

.-.SSUSOfl"s I J4 0. 06A 000 

A .<!l.. 

""" 
.<!l.. 

.>I!!. ( .... 
~ .. 

A 

,.....,_ -

I \ . .ll!k >!Ir.. ( 

/ 

... ,, • ..., "°" ...,, ...... 
\ A \ 

\ 

,S-(g J -'lo 

Fo~M~ \....o'T 3 

.. /T AIJlilWAl.SCOlllQ[. t,. 
OUD JltCI'. 0.: un 

'"49· .. . - ... 
-foeoled ll'i ~• 

~ 

\.OCUS MAP 
SCALt: 1·- 2000' 

N 

EB 
1, OM-ICl\S: fALMQUlH HQU$j"° AtlO SCR..,CC 

CVl'lll\ t10MlllU wtVSt 
'L !OHlfO OISlllllCI: Act 
l. WAl'l'llt RCSOIJfltC O\IClll.A,. 01sn ucr. 
•. n.ooo ZOllC: ZOMC c 

~"fr'lv 
' 

1.i 

GRAPHIC SCALE 

MS SVft\'t't AHO !'VII COl' OIU.I 10 1UE 
~octoUl'IA&. AHO 'l(Ofl'llCM. STAHONIOS ron 
rut , RACllCC O' lAHO SUlt"l(l'f«> IM 1W( 

COMllON'fi{H,lH :l:~TS 

~"~~~ 
lf01(: 1'Hl1 l't.MI IS t 11S(O (IN AH 
OH n< tltOUHO IH$lRVKl'll SUlt"(.Y, 

,_.,..._UIM~ 

k s-t.J..-J I T r-;s: t'r; 
th>!.. c 1tl "'") ..... .. .... 

BSS 
DE SIGN 

l/\NO SURVEYINC 
CML ENG'.INEERiHC 
LANO Pl.ANNING 

::~i.::::.w:_ ,,....,.. v_._."' m... ....___,u, ___ ..., 

0: 

~ 

~ 
~ ~ 
5 w 

Cl !>: 1--1-- Vl 
zoc!XVlw~ 
<; O ::> Wu 
_J~ ~g:~~ 
u..~ <w ~ 
o <e>wo_ 
~z~gs.c: 

~ g:gi ~~~ 
--' 0 Z (3:;i 
CL I 0 

iE. 
::> 
0 
j 
i:. 

1· .. 50• 

j 
i:. 

MAY 26. 2000 ·-T JB\EJP 

JMrualMI' 
99193 

,...,... 
08-339 



med! ~~ot~~c'!"~t·~:•!1,, 
-~ r.,..._u.,... • f lM 11;.,i.1u1 
et~.cs .. 

HOU4S ANO NcCAJ.1H, IMC. 

~7"P 
O•h 

1')111 1urwy ortd pl-i ar1f«rr1 
,. U\• ,,.., • .,,61 ..,d 1-owc.i 

L:d'S.::.~, t lh!'g:;~" ... 1u, 
ol l.ilonochu1• l\.a.. 

Hot.Ma ANO McCRA1H. HC. 

~e 
Cole 

H•\ •l Th!. plol\ k bond en Of'I cn
\h1-91wnd ltuln..met1I ' "".,.,. 

~ 
1, "'°°"t SS:: 517 CIN'OllO mEtT 
1 ASWSOR'S NUMICA: .)4 01 ooe 003 
J.. U»!llC DIS"llUCTt ,t.COI 
"· f\.000 HA2AACI lOHE.Sl JC 
S. R£1'E.ROIC(t PlNf IOOK 563. PACE 40 

l»'O ~T 1\.J.H JUI._. 
I. 'lrilHO CXPOSUI\[ CATtCCIRY'i 0 

HOT JO .K.Ut 

l . 0\Q\AT OISTN~ COASTAi. P'OP«> - ~EAT PONO 
&. 'flt,\Ttft ftUOURCE "'°rtCTIOH OISTPtlCT 

-~--- ··------ .. 

=.iic:'~ 

~ 

_,,:tc,mc 
IM'IG.""'°"'1,u 

N~w· LO'T 4 

~M:.:1'11>J(_, 

·I; • ;;i 

~~u:-· 

'" • / 

_po,. .. I - -- - - -

1.J. .. 
~-/$· ~ -

- . - -<\-\' .,.,...- . / \ 
_____ .,,,.. ( \ i: 

... ... _, ...... - ... " '~.:-t £
_. .. :,;,.;:::: ... ,,,,,,.~ ___.,, -

...... -- '·. 'i.\~~ 
- - ' \ii · · - ·._., .,..,-. ., ... ,. ... ... \ r 

--- ....... co / \ \ ··---!!.~!!..~- - ·· - ·· - .. ...... \\ -
)...-

F'ORMERLY .,.,...-- c:a~1 
lOT J .- _.,.,... nu~ 

.... --- ........ 
,,,....- LOT 4 

- 11,hl\c.101AI. 
},21 Ac,Ul'\41'1) 

~01 M, '(.(T\,A!fO 

----- ~l ____ 5J 
'"'""' lfl'Oi")'( .,,. 91.kC*..: 

••u:r 

'\ 1_~ 
'-__ "" I 

rM.MCllJMKA"IC( 
~Mll'IC:. \. 

\ 

_.....,_ 
.-.-:r..c-

)l;t~S(AlL ,--... 
~ 
\ ' 

-.s.D/HUJfOI.[ <O/DIW.HelC . r'Ci~Ul'1.t 
-~-+'~"oo=•~·~~~~~~--''~"""~~~~~~~:::,,,_~~~-}--1.:~;;;;;;;;1~~~~~~~~f;;;;d~~~~~!:'!~'.::::::::~~';"""~-;; 'It I' " 

~Cl. I - ........... 
'"""' 

CR.• P>llC SC-'L£ 

CUwJ ... l 'j 
lt'l•!"'.~ ... ·._~ H"-1'~1!',,."'ll .~ ',;t•r ~tJ 'l.1 l~ · ..r~ 

GIFFORD STREET 
t'V'tlt - :)) n. tilDC} 

Et,~E!JE!H DETAii 
$C.lU: r .. w 

QWER/APPI ICANT 
)0• 1HO lLC 
11~ SCAJ.HTOH A\'CNV( 
FALMOUTH. M" o"~o 

1.r " MCnHC or me r...u.oum l"LNIM~ 
90NIC HO.O --------
IT WAS \IOTtD: 
.. N",.AOYJ<l. UNCCA lMt St.lllDl\U:ION CONlJllOC. 

\.AW lfOT Jl[OllRCO,· 

1·.::'f' •. 
~ 1tC. """'""''' • Oll'ds oroo-1o.Oi UHOCn 1HC 
SWIOl'o'ISX»t COfm.Q. LAW 1S" lfO"I A ~llCH ?HAT 
THC u1n C411'\.T ~1>4 1ottlN• "Ccuv.JIOMI. ANO SHOUJI 
NOf ft CQfl\l\LJCO ,.,,N( ~tlill, 1"A.T ~I.OU 
DU'IC'lta OI Tl<rt..AHJll.fDll'l\.t.o10Aauutti: 
, UMf, 

OATt ., 0£SCRIPTION prcwn~•dt"' 
REV IS IONS 

PLAN OF LAND 
Pl\£1" ... AEO F'OI' 

GIFFORD WORKFORCE HOUSING 

'" fALMOU1H, ~· 

























20190306 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8h 
 

Authorizing the execution of Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments 

 



 
 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
COMMUNITY SEPTIC MANAGEMENT 

LOAN PROGRAM 
 

3195 MAIN STREET/ P.O.BOX 427 
BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 

 
 

Kendall Ayers Phone: (508) 375-6610 

Program Administrator  Fax: (508) 375-6854 

 www.barnstablecountysepticloan.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
DATE: March 12, 2019 
TO: County Commissioners 
FROM: Community Septic Management Loan Program 
SUBJECT: Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments 
  

 
Please execute Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments certifying that the betterment assessments upon the 
hereinafter described parcels of real estate in the Notices of Betterment Assessment recorded in Barnstable 
County Registry of Deeds or Barnstable Registry District of the Land Court as listed below, stating that 
betterments to be assessed pursuant to a betterment agreement for septic improvements, in accordance with 
General Laws, Chapter 111, Section 127B 1/2 have, together with any interest and costs thereon, been paid or 
legally abated.  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved: 
 
 
 
Board of Regional Commissioners 

 

Mary Pat Flynn, Commissioner Ronald R. Beaty, Vice-Chair Ronald Bergstrom, Chair 

Date 



N
ot
ic
e 
of

Be
tt
er
m
en

t
As

se
ss
m
en

t
D
oc
um

en
t N

o.

D
ee

d 
Re

fe
re
nc
e

D
oc
um

en
t N

o.
D
ee

d 
Re

fe
re
nc
e

Ce
rt
ifi
ca
te
 o
f T

itl
e 
N
o.

N
ot
ic
e 
of

Be
tt
er
m
en

t 
As

se
ss
m
en

t
Bo

ok

N
ot
ic
e 
of

Be
tt
er
m
en

t 
As

se
ss
m
en

t
Pa

ge

D
ee

d
Re

fe
re
nc
e

Bo
ok

D
ee

d
Re

fe
re
nc
e

Pa
ge

O
w
ne

r(
s)
 N
am

ed
 in

 B
et
te
rm

en
t A

ss
es
sm

en
t

Lo
ca
tio

n 
of
 P
ro
pe

rt
y

X
X

X
31

67
5

21
4

23
55

4
10

6
Ei
le
en

 F
. P

ow
er
s

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 2
09

Pa
rc
el
 0
69

15
6 
O
ld
 S
ta
ge
 R
oa

d
Ce

nt
er
vi
lle
 (B

ar
ns
ta
bl
e)

X
X

X
23

84
8

44
82

24
14

Ch
ris
to
ph

er
 M

. H
am

ilt
on

Ka
re
n 
E.
 H
am

ilt
on

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 8
‐1
85

Pa
rc
e1

63
21

 R
yd

er
 C
irc

le
Sa
nd

w
ic
h

X
X

X
31

77
1

13
6

49
28

24
6

Ei
le
en

 M
es
ca
ll

Pa
tr
ic
ia
 A
. M

es
ca
ll

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 2
12

Pa
rc
el
 5
9

17
 H
az
el
w
oo

d 
Ro

ad
So

ut
h 
De

nn
is 
(D
en

ni
s)

X
X

X
30

62
9

17
5

28
73

8
18

7
Da

vi
d 
P.
 S
ca
nl
on

W
ill
ia
m
 R
. B

en
ne

tt

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 1
72

Pa
rc
el
 1
12

9 
Vi
nl
an

d 
Dr
iv
e

So
ut
h 
De

nn
is 
(D
en

ni
s)

X
X

X
30

84
8

13
3

73
04

41
Ro

be
rt
 J.
 K
ne

pp
er

Ho
lly
 L
. K

ne
pp

er

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 1
07

Pa
rc
el
 5
5

9 
Rh

in
e 
Ro

ad
Ya
rm

ou
th
 P
or
t (
Ya
rm

ou
th
)

X
X

X
31

63
2

32
5

29
04

5
17

9
Jo
el
 W

. C
ha

m
be

rla
in

Li
nd

a 
R.
 C
ha

m
be

rla
in

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 9
0

Pa
rc
el
 6
4

39
 G
re
en

 W
ay

So
ut
h 
Ya
rm

ou
th
 (Y

ar
m
ou

th
)

12
55

43
0

10
21

15
5

Lo
t 1

03
Pl
an

 6
13

9‐
Q

Sh
 3

17
87

70
X

X
X

X
Ch

er
ri‐
An

n 
St
ro
m

f/
k/
a 
Ch

er
ri‐
An

n 
St
in
ne

tt

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 1
0

Pa
rc
e1

23
29

 M
er
ed

ith
 R
oa

d
Fo

re
st
da

le
 (S

an
dw

ic
h)

10
53

81
5

69
13

35
Lo
t 4

1
Pl
an

 2
81

20
‐B

Sh
 3

14
40

44
X

X
X

X
N
an

cy
 E
lli
s M

el
an

so
n

a/
k/
a 
N
an

cy
 J.
 E
lli
s

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 9
8

Pa
rc
el
 5
7‐
41

22
 F
re
de

ric
ks
bu

rg
 A
ve
nu

e
Ea
st
 H
ar
w
ic
h 
(H
ar
w
ic
h)

Ba
rn
st
ab

le
 R
eg
is
tr
y 
D
is
tr
ic
t o

f t
he

 L
an

d 
Co

ur
t

Ba
rn
st
ab

le
 C
ou

nt
y 
Re

gi
st
ry
 O
f D

ee
ds

CE
RT

IF
IC
AT

ES
 F
O
R 
D
IS
O
LV

IN
G
 S
EP

TI
C 
BE

TT
ER

M
EN

TS
 F
O
R 
03

/1
3/
19


	Board Packet_BRC_20190313_Regular
	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190313_Regular
	Agenda_BRC_20190313_Regular
	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190313_Regular

	Item 5a_Minutes Draft_BRC_20190306_Regular
	Board Packet_BRC_20190313_Regular
	Item 5b_Minutes Draft_BRC_20190306_Executive Session
	Board Packet_BRC_20190313_Regular
	Item 6a_Discussion_BRC_Posting Method for Meetings _20190227
	Item 6e1_Discussion_BRC_Posting Method for Meetings _20190227
	Item 6e_Discussion_BRC_Posting Method for Meetings _20190227
	29.01: Purpose, Scope and Other General Provisions
	29.02: Definitions
	29.03:Notice Posting Requirements
	29.04: Certification
	29.05:Complaints
	29.06: Investigation
	29.07:Resolution
	29.08: Advisory Opinions
	29.09: Other Enforcement Actions
	29.10:Remote Participation
	29.11: Meeting Minutes


	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190313_Regular
	Item 8a_Reimbursement Request_ADMIN_Yunits_20190107-0305
	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190313_Regular
	Item 8b_Appointment_BCHC_Mason_20190227
	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190313_Regular
	Item 8c_Agreement_Dredge_Dennis_Approach Channel_20190313
	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190313_Regular
	Item 8d_Agreement_Dredge_Yarmouth_Approach Channel_20190313
	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190313_Regular
	Item 8e_Agreement_Dredge_Truro_Pamet Harbor Basin_20190313
	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190313_Regular
	Item 8f_Agreement_CCCE_CCS_Subaward_Seafloor Mapping Program_20190313
	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190313_Regular
	Item 8g_Agreement_HS_HOME_704FHC_Amendment_20190313
	66049261_fhc-gifford-backup_materials
	MEMO on GIFFORD ST. FALMOUTH MORTGAGES
	L. MOYNIHAN LTR AND PLANS
	L. MOYNIHAN LTR-01-04-19
	PLANS

	COUNTY MORTGAGE-14605-281
	HOME MORTGAGE-19435-343

	65921485_fhc-amendment_of_mortgage_bc_county_signature
	68686099_fhc-amendment_of_mortgage_bc_home_signature

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190313_Regular
	Item 8h_Certificates_HLTH_Septic_Dissolving Betterments_20190313
	DATE:
	March 12, 2019

	TO:
	County Commissioners

	FROM:
	Community Septic Management Loan Program

	SUBJECT:
	Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments


	Item 8h1_Certificates_HLTH_Septic_Dissolving Betterments_20190313




